
Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

1 
 

 
AGENDA 

CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION 

MONDAY, APRIL 18, 2016 
8:30 A.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE AGENDA   
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Minutes of April 4, 2016 
B. Tax Releases and Refunds 
C. DSS Budget Amendment – Sunshine Center 
D. Finance Budget Amendment – Volunteer Fire Departments 

 
2. CHERRY POINT REGION JOINT LAND USE STUDY (JLUS) PRESENTATION: 

Steve Player, The Wooten Company 
 

3. NC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION (NCDPI) FACILITY SURVEY:  
Glenn Reaves, Assistant Superintendent of Administrative Services, Craven 
County Schools 

 
4. JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL (JCPC) FUNDING ALLOCATION 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Jennifer Dacey, Chair 
 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS 
 

5. DSS BUDGET AMENDMENT – ADOPTION:  Alfreda Stout, Deputy Director 
 
6. HEALTH:  Jennifer Blackmon, Human Services Deputy Director 

A. New Fee Recommendations 
B. Fee Change Recommendation 
C. Budget Amendment - Request for Additional Funding 

 
7. PLANNING – FEMA PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION STORM SHUTTER GRANT:  

Don Baumgardner, Planning Director 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

2 
 

 
8. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Timothy Downs, 

Economic Development Director 
 
9. FINANCE:  Craig Warren, Finance Director 

A. Budget Amendments – Schools 
B. Audit Contract 

 
10. APPOINTMENTS 
 
11. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Jim Hicks 

 
12. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Jack Veit 

 
13. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

 
14. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 
 

  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

3 
 

Presenter:       
Agenda Item No. 1     
Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. APPROVE MINUTES OF APRIL 4, 2016 
 
The Board will be requested to approve the minutes of April 4, 2016 regular session. 
 
B. TAX RELEASES AND REFUNDS 
 
The Board will be requested to approve the routine tax releases and refunds contained 
in Attachment #1.B. 
 

C. DSS BUDGET AMENDMENT – SUNSHINE CENTER 

The Board will be requested to increase line item due to increased expected private pay 
revenue for the Sunshine Center, Adult Respite Care Program located at the Craven 
County Senior Center. (See Attachment #1.C.) 
 
D. FINANCE BUDGET AMENDMENT – VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENTS 

The Board will be requested to approve the budget amendment contained in 
Attachment #1.D. 

Volunteer Fire Depts – Total cost of the VFD/Rescue Sqaud general insurance 
for FY ’16 was $16,959.  The County budgeted $17,357.  While the amount budgeted 
for each fire department was roughly $1,017, the actual cost was not uniform. Need to 
budget an additional $16 from Number 7 Township Fire & Rescue fund balance to cover 
its portion of the general insurance cost. 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve consent agenda items. 
 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

4 
 

      Presenter: Steve Player     
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHERRY POINT REGION JOINT LAND USE STUDY (JLUS) PRESENTATION 
 

With completion of the final draft of the study, the next step is providing an Executive 
Summary briefing to each of the County Boards of Commissioners prior to delivering the 
final product to the sponsor, Carteret County, by April 30th.  Project Manager, Steve 
Player, will make this presentation. 

 
 
 

Board Action:  Receive information 
 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

5 
 

      Presenter: Glenn Reaves     
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   
 
 
 
 
 

NC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION (NCDPI) FACILITY SURVEY 
 

Attachment #3 contains the final NCDPI Facility Needs Survey, which will be presented 
to the Board by Glenn Reaves.  It represents all of the Craven County Schools’ capital 
needs.  An update on the completion status of current capital projects will also be 
provided. 

 
 
 

Board Action:  Receive information 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

6 
 

      Presenter: Jennifer Dacey     
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 

JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL (JCPC) FUNDING ALLOCATION 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Chair, Jennifer Dacey, will present the Council’s 
recommended funding allocations for FY16-17 for the Board’s approval, as seen in 
Attachment #4. 

 
 
 

Board Action:  A vote to approve recommendations 
 
 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

7 
 

      Presenter: Alfreda Stout     
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  DSS BUDGET AMENDMENT – ADOPTION 
 

Alfreda Stout, Deputy DSS Director, will present a request to budget Special Adoption 
funds received from the State based on the number of adoptions that are finalized.  
These funds are given to the DSS to use in the adoption program.  There is no County 
match, and unspent funds are to be rolled forward to the next fiscal year.  
(See Attachment #5) 

 
 
 

Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment 
 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

8 
 

      Presenter: Jennifer Blackmon    
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  HEALTH 
 

 
A. NEW FEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Ms. Blackmon will present a request for new fee recommendations for Serogroup B 
Meningococcal Vaccine (MenB) and Ambulatory Blood Pressure Monitoring to be 
effective May 1, 2016.  (See Attachment #6.A.) 
 
Board Action:  Consider approval of new fee recommendations. 
 

B. FEE CHANGE RECOMMENDATION 

Ms. Blackmon will present a request for a fee change recommendation for Medical 
Home Postpartum Visit to be effective March 18, 2016.  (See Attachment #6.B.) 
 
 
Board Action:  Consider approval of fee change recommendation. 

C. BUDGET AMENDMENT – REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDING 

Ms. Blackmon will present the budget amendment contained in Attachment #6.C, 
requesting additional funding to cover the cost of a contract employee currently working 
two days a week. 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment. 

  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

9 
 

      Presenter: Don Baumgardner    
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 

 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  PLANNING – FEMA PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION 
STORM SHUTTER GRANT 

 
The Craven County Planning Department has been notified by the North Carolina 
Department of Public Safety that Craven County has received a Federal Emergency 
Management Agency Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant to have storm shutters installed on 
the Craven County Emergency Operations Center (EOC) at 411 Craven Street.  The 
storm shutters will be installed on the first and second floors of the EOC, with the 
shutters on the second floor being controlled by remote control.  The grant is 75% 
federal share and 25% local share.     
 
FEMA recognizes a need to provide communities with a much needed source of pre-
disaster mitigation funding for cost-effective hazard mitigation activities that are part of a 
comprehensive mitigation program like the one we have here in Craven County.  As 
part of the County’s hazard mitigation plan, planning staff is always looking for 
mitigation activities that help reduce injuries, loss of life, damage and destruction of 
property, specifically critical facilities properties like the EOC.   
 
Not only will the EOC be secured during storm events, but the County will notify their 
insurance provider to hopefully receive a discounted premium for having the storm 
shutters installed on the EOC. 
 
The total for the equipment and shutter install is $52,387.00, which includes the storm 
shutters, motors, remote controls and installation of the storm shutters on the building.  
Also needed to complete the job would be to hire a licensed electrician to provide power 
to the motors for the second floor storm shutters, we estimate the cost for this to be 
$7500.00.  Also included in the cost of the project is for staff to administer the grant, 
which is a reimbursable expense back to the County.  We estimate this amount to be 
$2000.00. 
 
Grand Total- $61,887.00 
State/Federal Share- $46,415.25 
Local Share- $15,471.75 
  
In order to move forward with this project, we are respectfully requesting the Board of 
Commissioners approve the budget amendment contained in Attachment #7 and to 
provide the required match of $15,471.75. 
 

Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment.                                                 
 



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

10 
 

      Presenter: Timothy Downs     
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 

 

 

 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 
 

In June 2015, Craven County awarded Moen an Economic Development Grant. The 
first installment of that grant is due upon Moen’s full occupancy and operation in the 
new facility. Moen will occupy and operate in the new facility in April 2016. Craven 
County Economic Development Director, Timothy Downs, is requesting to move money 
from the Economic Development reserve account in order to pay the first installment of 
the performance grant to Moen, as shown in Attachment #8. 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment. 
 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

11 
 

      Presenter: Craig Warren     
      Agenda Item No. 9     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  FINANCE 

 
A. BUDGET AMENDMENTS – SCHOOLS 
 
Finance Director, Craig Warren, will present the following budget amendments for the 
Board’s approval.  (See Attachment #9.A.) 
 
Amendments:  Schools – Amount received for late listing penalty has exceeded 
total projected amount of $60,000 for current fiscal year.  Need to budget additional  
$ 39,000 for revised revenue projection and corresponding expenditure to schools. 
 
   Schools – Received $64,247.78 from National Timber receipts this 
year. These funds are passed to Craven County Board of Education as school PILT.  
The amount budgeted for FY ’16 was $50,000.  Need to budget an additional $14,248 to 
both revenue and expenditure side for distribution. 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendments. 
 
B. AUDIT CONTRACT 
 
RSM US LLP formally known as McGladrey and Pullen has submitted a proposed audit 
contract for the fiscal year ending June 30th, 2016 contained in Attachment #9.B. The 
proposed audit fee is $68,200, an increase of $1,600 (2.4%) over last year. Also 
included in the contract is an additional fee of $4,200 to perform testing of LGERS 
pension census data at the participant level as required by the Office of State Auditor 
and to comply with GASB 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. 
 
Board Action:  Consider approval of the contract and authorizing its execution. 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

12 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 10     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

A. PENDING 
B. UPCOMING 
 
 
 
Board Action:  Appointments will be effective immediately, unless otherwise 
specified. 
 



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

13 
 

A. PENDING APPOINTMENT(S): 
 
 
CRAVEN COMMUNITY CHILD PROTECTION TEAM       
AUTHORIZATION:  NCGS 7B-1406         
MISSION/FUNCTION: To respond to child protection needs before a child is harmed by taking  
action to identify and address gaps or deficiencies in services and resources  through the annual  
report to the County Board of Commissioners, collaboration with  community partners,    
promoting public awareness and advocating for action that addresses the child protection needs 
of each county.            
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS: 11-16   TYPE: DSS Director, DSS staff member, law  
      enforcement officer, attorney from DA’s office,  
      executive director of local community action   
      agency, public School superintendent or   
      designee, member of DSS Board, mental health  
      professional, Guardian ad Litem Coordinator,  
      Public Health Director, local  
      health care provider, EMS/firefighter, District  
      Court Judge, Commissioners appointees from  
      other county agencies or community at-large 
  
QUALIFICATIONS:   Stated above. 
LENGTH OF TERMS: As set by respective agencies, position and Commissioners’ 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Quarterly; January, April, July, October  
 
Term(s) expiring:  Dawn Gibson (Not seeking reappointment; parent who has lost child 

before the age of 18) 
 
No applications on file.   
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

14 
 

NURSING HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE        
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S.131E-115 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Work to maintain the intent of the Nursing Home Patients Bill of  
        Rights within the licensed homes in the County; to promote community 
        involvement and cooperation with domiciliary homes to ensure quality  
        care for the elderly.        
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
7-12      Dictated by the number of homes in the county; 
      homes have right to recommend 25% of appointees 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Cannot be employed by or have a relative in a nursing home.      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Quarterly, beginning in March, third Wednesday, 10:00 a.m.  
      
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
 
Term(s) expiring: Carol Wolfe (Resigned) 
 
No applications on file. 
 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

15 
 

RIVER BEND BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT (EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION) 
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 160A-362 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Serves as a quasi-judicial body; reviews and rules on permitted 
variances 
  
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
1      Resident of River Bend’s ETJ Area 
 
1      Alternate; resident of River Bend’s ETJ Area 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As needed 
 
No applications on file. 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

16 
 

CRAVEN AGING PLANNING BOARD        
AUTHORIZATION: Bylaws 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To provide a comprehensive assessment of the needs and opportunities 
associated with older adults; an achievable vision of successful aging. Craven County based 
programs for the support of and investment in older adults and their families, including a system 
of care for high-risk older adults; and policy strategies for maximizing the functional 
independence and quality of life of older adults and their families consonant with their wishes 
and desires. 
 
 Serves as the sole policy formulation board concerning aging programs on behalf of the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners.     
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
 18         Agency - 10     
            Local Government - 3     
            Client/Caregiver - 2     
            Senior Rpresentative - 3     
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Representative of senior population (60+ years of age), client representative (caretaker of an 
older adult, employed by or volunteering for senior service provider) or representative of one of 
the following agencies or government entities: Craven County DSS, Craven County Health, 
Carolina East Medical Center, CARTS, Employment Security Commission, Neuse Center, 
Coastal Community Action, Legal Aid of North Carolina, Senior Tarheel Legislature, Craven 
County Commissioners, Craven County Manager, Council of Governments.    
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Fourth Thursday of every second month, beginning in January, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Craven County Administration Building         
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Terms Expiring: Joy Hudson (Permanent agency seat; Employment Security Commission  
   “ESC”)* 
    

* The ESC member has not been attending for some time. The Aging 
Planning Board is in the process of determining if this seat needs to 
continue or if bylaws need amendment. 

 
No applications on file. 



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

17 
 

CRAVEN COUNTY HEALTH BOARD         
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 130A-35         
MISSION/FUNCTION: Primary policy making and hearing body for the Craven County Health 
Department, charged with the immediate care and responsibility for promoting and protecting the 
public health in Craven County.          
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
11      A physician, dentist, optometrist, veterinarian,  
           registered nurse, licensed pharmacist, Craven   
           County Commissioner, general public   
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
(See above)      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: 2nd Monday of every month, 12:00 – 1:30 p.m.        
 
COMPENSATION: No  Yes X Specify: $50/meeting  
 
Term(s) expiring:  Dr. Eric Wheelis (Veterinarian; not seeking re-appointment) 
 
No application on file. 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

18 
 

AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE        
AUTHORIZATION: Local Ordinance 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Administer provision of the Craven County Voluntary Agricultural  
District Ordinance and perform other agricultural related tasks or duties assigned by the Craven  
Count Board of Commissioners. 
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
9      (See qualifications) 
                 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
1) resident of area Township representing; 2) agricultural landowner; 3) actively and directly  
involved in agricultural production on at least 10 acres of farmland 4) special interest,   
experience, or education in agriculture and/or rural land preservation     
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: At the call of the Chairperson        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Terms expiring:  Jimmy Arthur (Not seeking reappointment) 
 
 
No applications on file. 



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

19 
 

B. UPCOMING APPOINTMENTS 
 
May 
 
EMS Advisory Council:   Keith Morris (Appointed 2012) 
      Jonathan Stephens (Appointed 2012) 
 
Local Emergency Planning Committee: Paul Bryant (Appointed 2011) 
      Danny Hill (Appointed 2011) 
      Tamara Jones (Appointed 2011) 
      Timothy Lawrence (Appointed 2011; MCAS) 
      Rick Weaver (Appointed 2011; MCAS) 
      Deborah Yarborough (Appointed 2011) 
 
New Bern Board of Adjustment:  John “Pop” Murrell (Appointed 2013) 
 
 
June 
 
ABC Board:     Chip Chagnon (Appointed 2013) 
      Tony Lee (Appointed 2013) 
      Barbara Whiteman (Appointed 2013) 
 
Social Services Board:   Clayton Gaskins (Appointed 2013) 
 
Fire Tax Commissioner:   Sandra Hammer (Appointed 2014) 
 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council: Jennifer Dacey (Appointed 2013) 
      Dawn Gibson (Appointed 2014) 
      Debbie Hodges (Appointed 2010; Schools) 
      Jan Hood (Appointed 2012; Non-Profit; retired) 
      Jean Huryn (Appointed 2010; Substance 
Abuse) 
      Faye Legacy (Appointed 2014; DSS) 
      Todd Shuart (Appointed 2010; YMCA) 
      Toussaint Summers (Appointed 2011; 
N.B.P.D.) 
 
Nursing Home Advisory Committee: Howard Humphreys (Appointed 2013) 
 
Recreation Advisory Board:  Dickie Fairburn (Appointed 2009; two terms) 
      Cathy Frazier (Appointed 2013) 
      Bill Taylor (Appointed 2010; two terms) 
 
Coastal Carolina Airport Authority: Harold Blot (Appointed 2008) 
 
 



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

20 
 

      Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 11     
 
 
 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
A. Final Acceptance - Offer to Purchase Real Property – 619 Second Avenue, New 

Bern (Parcel Number 8-012-148) 
 
The County and City previously received and tentatively approved an offer for this 
property, which after the upset bid process, was in the final amount of $6,350.00.  The 
total taxes and costs that were foreclosed on were $5,442.17.  The current tax value is 
$14,540.00.  The offer was advertised, and there were multiple upset bids.   
Attachment #11.A contains the proposed resolution, deed and lien waiver.  It is 
recommended that the Board give final approval of the sale and adopt the resolution. 
 
B. Initial Offer to Purchase Real Property – 329 Nelson Road, Vanceboro (Parcel 

Number 1-054-8002) 
 
The County has received an offer in the amount of $3,057.65 for this property, which 
was acquired through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and costs that were foreclosed 
on were $3,057.65.  The current tax value is $13,500 for the land, and $56,760.00 for a 
manufactured home located thereon.  However, due to issues with the title, it is still 
uncertain if the manufactured home is considered part of the real property for purposes 
of this conveyance.  The potential buyer has been informed of this issue, and still 
wishes to proceed.  Attachment #11.B. contains copies of the offer to purchase, deed, 
GIS information, and proposed resolution. 
 
Should the County accept this offer, the property will then be advertised for upset bids in 
accordance with the General Statutes.  Once no further upset bids are timely received, 
the County may accept or reject the final offer. 
 
C. Initial Offer to Purchase Real Property – 109 Great Inagua Court (Parcel Number 

2-061-079). 
 
The County has received an offer in the amount of $25.00 for this property, which was 
acquired through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and costs that were foreclosed on 
were $1,579.56 in 2003.  The current tax value is $1,450.00.  In its current state, the 
real property cannot be developed.  Attachment #11.C. contains copies of the offer to 
purchase, deed, GIS information, and proposed resolution.  
 
Should the County accept this offer, the property will then be advertised for upset bids in 
accordance with the General Statutes.  Once no further upset bids are timely received, 
the County may accept or reject the final offer. 
 
 



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

21 
 

 
D. Acquisition of 7240 US Hwy 70 E (Parcel 6-025-002) 
 
The County Attorney will provide an update on the acquisition of this property, to 
replace the Hickman Hill Convenience Center. 
 
 
 

  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

22 
 

      Presenter: Jack Veit     
      Agenda Item No. 12     
 

 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

23 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 13     

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
  



Agenda Date:        April 18, 2016  
 

24 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 14     

 
 
 
 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board will be requested to go into closed session concerning a personnel matter, 
pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6). 
 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 04/18/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME 

GIBBS I MARQUEDA 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2015 

HODGES, BARRY STEVEN JR & JENN 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

ACCT#/TICKET# 

0104644 2015-0021595 

0097488 2015-0091647 

JACKSON, JOANN 0012207 2015-0029364 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

JACKSON, JOANN 0012207 2014-0028949 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

JACKSON, JOANN 0012207 2013-0028295 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

JACKSON I JOANN 0012207 2011-0029429 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

JACKSON, JOANN 0012207 2009-0029119 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

JACKSON, JOANN 0012207 2008-0029064 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

LAWSON, GARY K 0106371 2015-0033778 
MILITARY EXEMPT 

MOORE, DIANNA 0017797 2015-0040448 
DID NOT OWN 1-1-2015 

10 -CREDIT MEMO(S) 

PAGE 1 

AMOUNT 

54.54 

37.13 

32.71 

39.06 

42.18 

25.05 

27.93 

29.17 

50.91 

56.51 

395.19 



TAX805P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 
REFONDS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 04/18/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

FOYE, CHARLOTTE S 0030263 2014-0019576 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE APRIL 2010 

FOYE, CHARLOTTE S 0030263 2013-0019059 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE APRIL 2010 

FOYE, CHARLOTTE S 0030263 2012-0019613 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE APRIL 2010 

FOYE, CHARLOTTE S 0030263 2011-0019776 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE APRIL 2010 

4 -REFUND(S) 144.00 



DISTRIBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLI CATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

1. Fund: General ------------------------------------ 2. Department: DSS 7292 -----------------------------

3. Revenue Account Number(s) Amount 4. Expenditure A ccount N umber(s) A mount 
101-7292-352.40-00 1st Party Pmt!Respite 4,000.00 101-7292-450.32-12 Activity Supplies 4,000.00 

. 

Total: 4,000.00 Total: 4,000.00 

Justification or ExpJanation of Change: 
Budget Amendment needed to increase line item for expected private pay revenue for the Sunshine Center, Adult Respite Care Program 
located at the Craven County Senior Center. Funds will be utilized for program needs. 

~~¥~ 
Department Head 

Apr11,2016 

Date County Manager Date 

County Commissioners/Chairman Date Journal Entry Number Date 

FINBA - Revised 010907 



1. Fund: General- Fire Department 

3. Revenue Account Number(s) 
247-0000-399-01-00-#7 Township 

Total: 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 

DISTRIBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

2.Department:_F_ire __ D_ep~a_rt_m_e_n_t ________________ __ 

Amount 4. Expenditure Account Number( s) Amount 
16.00 24 7-2900-41 07'46-00 - General Insurance 16.00 

16.00 Total: 16.00 

To cover shortage of Fire Departments General Insurance line item for VFJS invoice dated 3/15/16 in the amount of$ 16,959.00 

County Commissioners/Chairman 

FINBA-Revised 010907 

Mar 30, 2016 

Date 

Date 

County Manager Date 

Journal Entry Number Date 



.,.... 
Q

) 
O

l 
C

ll 
a.. 



ifiJ;; 
~r 

201S"""l6.DPI·•.•Facility NeeCisSurvey Capacity Summary 
0 to 5 Years 

UNIT: 250 

25011 00 !Craven County Career 

250 I3041Aibert H Bangert Eleme 

250I3061Ben D Quinn Elementar 

250 I3081Bridgeton Elementary 

250I3121Brinson Memorial Elem 

25013141Craven Early College Hi 

250 I3161Creekside Elementary 

250I3201Vanceboro-Farm Life El 

25013211Early College EAST Hig 

250 I3241Grover C Fields Middle 

25013281Graham A Barden Elem 

250I332IH J MacDonald Middle 

250 I3361Havelock Elementary 

250I3401Havelock High 

250I3441Havelock Middle 

250 I348IJ T Barber Elementary 

25013501James W Smith Elemen 

25013561New Bern High 

250,360 Oaks Road Elementary 

250 362 Roger R Bell Elementar 

250 I3641Trent Park Elementary 

250I3681Tucker Creek Middle 

Needs 

-+----~-------I------I-------+------~----~N_e_w __ S_ch_o_o_l___ I 01 0 
332 I Renovations 0 454 

0 

0 

506 I 18 I 496 I o I o I 496 I 2 1 !Addition I 18 I 496 0 

481 I 18 Renovations I 0 I 488 

645 0 Renovations 0 634 

0 

0 

196 I 0 I 0 I 0 I 0 I 0 I 0 0 I 0 I o 0 

595 I 0 I 482 I 0 I 0 I 482 I 2 0 !Addition I 0 I 482 0 

732 

621 0 ~-6021 0 0 602 12 4 Addition/Renovation ~~~~ ~~6600~2 
208 0 0 0 208 208 3 0 None Needed 0 0 

562 0 0 732 0 732 0 0 Renovations 0 0 

0 

0 

935 

299 33 304 0 0 304 3 1 Addition I 0 304 

933 0 0 935 0 935 0 0 Addition/Renovation 0 0 

384 0 376 0 0 376 0 0 Addition 0 376 

0 

0 

1,0721 0 I 0 I 0 I 878 I 878 I 5 4 !Addition I 0 I o 0 

530 

568 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

208 

0 

0 

0 

0 

878 

0 

568 

454 

496 

488 

634 

0 

482 

602 

208 

732 

304 

935 

376 

878 

530 451 I 0 I 0 I 530 I 0 1 530 1 01 0 !Renovations I 0 I 0 
375 34 428 0 -----or--428 r----2 0 !Renovations 34 428 I 0 I 0 I 428 

608 I 0 I 488 I 0 I 0 I 488 I 1 0 !Renovations I 0 I 488 I 0 I 0 I 488 

1,574 0 0 0 1,581 1,581 5 5 Renovations 0 0 I 0 1,581 1,581 

386 0 404 0 0 404 6 6 Addition 0 4041 0 0 404 
1 

312 0 452 0 0 452 3 0 Renovations 0 452 I 0 0 452 

412 0 0 583 0 583 0 0 !Renovations - 0 0 583 0 583 
430 I 0 I 4521 0 I 0 I 4521 3 0 !Addition I= ~ 14455~2- 0 0 452 

Renovations 0 0 1 0 651 651 250I3721West Craven High 910 I 0 I 0 I 0 I 651 I 651 I 7 7 

25013761West Craven Middle 8171 0 I 0 I 946 I 0 I 946 I 0 0 Renovations 0 I 0 I 946 I 0 I 946 I 

250I378IW Jesse Gurganus Ele I 5021 0 I 444 I 0 I 0 I 444 I 2 2 Renovations 01 4441 01 01 444 

250 1380 IArth ur W Edwards Elem I 350 I 0 I 624 I 0 I 0 I 624 I 2 Renovations 0 I 624 I 0 I o I 624 

Totals: 113,961 I 1031 7,1281 3,7261 3,886114,740 I 64 I 36 I '----5----'211 7,1281 3,7261 3,886114,740] 

Capacity Plan Summary - Craven County Schools printed: 1/6/2016 Page 1 of 2 

Page 2 of 74 Pages 



iilr; 
~r 

2015-t6·•·••.DPlFacility Needs Survey 

K-5 Middle 
Current Capacity: 7,128 3,726 

ADM 2014/15: 6,826 3,175 

Difference: 302 551 

Capacity Plan Summary - Craven County Schools 

High K-12 
3,886 14,740 

3,960 13,961 

(74) 779 

Page 3 of 7 4 Pages 

K-5 Middle High K-12 

Total Capacity: 7,128 3,726 3,886 14,740 
Proj Enrollment 2020/21: 7,651 3,329 4,430 15,410 

Difference: (523) 397 (544) (670) 

printed: 1/6/2016 Page 2 of 2 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey 

Unit: 250 /Priority New School Additions Renovations 

100 Craven County Career Te 1 12,625,881 0 0 

304 Albert H Bangert Element 2 0 3,036,923 1,138,216 

306 Ben D Quinn Elementary 2 0 1,505,750 3,499,800 

308 Bridgeton Elementary 2 0 0 483,383 

312 Brinson Memorial Element 2 0 0 2,766,759 

316 Creekside Elementary 2 0 0 54,549 

320 Vanceboro-Farm Life Ele 2 0 1,681,421 1,174,337 

324 Grover C Fields Middle 2 0 0 453,720 

328 Graham A Barden Elemen 2 0 0 369,189 

332 H J MacDonald Middle 2 0 0 1,464,615 

336 Havelock Elementary 2 0 0 42,978 

340 Havelock High 2 0 3,959,928 2,405,888 

344 Havelock Middle 2 0 0 1,072,569 

348 J T Barber Elementary 2 0 0 770,184 

350 James W Smith Elementa 2 0 1,505,750 1,484,896 

356 New Bern High 2 0 2,330,328 1,761,243 

360 Oaks Road Elementary 2 0 1,407,974 672,828 

362 Roger R Bell Elementary 2 0 1,505,750 213,465 

364 Trent Park Elementary 2 0 1,113,017 482,619 

368 Tucker Creek Middle 2 0 0 479,085 

372 West Craven High 2 0 2,330,328 1,096,680 

376 West Craven Middle 2 0 4,416,694 1,054,215 

378 W Jesse Gurganus Eleme 1 0 1,505,750 275,196 

380 Arthur W Edwards Eleme 2 0 1,699,347 3,225,915 

Totals: 12,625,881 27,998,960 26,442,329 

Craven County Schools Facility Needs 

Page 4 of74 Pages 

Cost Summary 
0 to 5 Years 

Furn/Eqpt Land 

1,896,211 1,980,000 

255,337 0 

126,375 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

132,004 0 

0 01 

0 0 

0 ol 
0 01 

332,351 0 

0 0 

0 0 

126,375 0 

195,581 ol 
118,169 0 

126,375 0 

93,414 0 

01 0 

195,581 0 

555,287 0 

126,375 ol 
133,455 0 

4,412,890 1 1,980,000 

Total 

$16,502,092 

$4,430,476 

$5,131,925 

$483,383 

$2,766,759 

$54,549 

$2,987,762 

$453,720 

$369,189 

$1,464,615 

$42,978 

$6,698,167 

$1,072,569 

$770,184 

$3,117,021 

$4,287,152 

$2,198,971 

$1,845,590 

$1,689,050 

$479,085 

$3,622,589 

$6,026,196 

$1,907,321 

$5,058,717 

$73,460,060 

printed: 1/7/2016 Page 1 of 1 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

.f. X $194.00 

*Base-line CasU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 
Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 

250-304 Albert H Bangert Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 5 of 74 Pages 

. ft. = 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

232 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
· 0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

Parking/ Drives:$ I 
Sewer System: 

Water System (well): 

Grading/ Drainage:$ 

Canopy ( cov. walk): 
Other Sitework (describe):$ 

Building/ Exterior/ Structure 
Roof Replacement: 

Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 

Interior/ Finishes 
Partition/Wall Construction:$ 

Ceilings: 

Flooring: 

Painting: 
Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 

Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 
Air Conditioning: 

Electrical Service: 
Lighting: 

Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 

ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 
Fire Alarm:$ 

Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 

Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 
Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 

Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 

Other Renovations (not incl. above) 
Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 

2.$ 

3.$ 

250-304 Albert H Bangert Elementary - 4 

40,000 I 40,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

D I Check box to add a well. 

5,000 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 150,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 375,000 

60,000 Replace exterior doors 60,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 

85,000 Replace interior doors 85,000 

s.f. 50,000 

s.f. 
55,895 s.f. X $3.00 per sq. ft. = 167,685 

s.f. 

50,750 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 50,750 

s.f. 

20,000 ACBM tile replacement 20,000 

-~ 

Subtotal: 998,435 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 54,914 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 84,867 

Total Renovation Cost: l$1,138,216 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 6 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

I 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $2,163,158 X 0.094. = 203,337 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: I'll Included for new media center 52,000 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $255,337 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $4,430,476 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1. I Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-304 Albert H Bangert Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 7 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 
Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 

250-380 Arthur W Edwards Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 8 of 74 Pages 

Estimated 
Cost 

. ft. = 232 800 

I /Acre= I 
Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 

Canopy (cov. walk): 
Other Sitework (describe):$ 

Building/ Exterior/ Structure 
Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-380 Arthur W Edwards Elementary - 4 

Notes/ Description Cost Size/ Amount 
10,000 Expand bus parking lot 1o,o0Ql 
[] Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 
35,000 Drain water away from ECP loading area 35,000 

s.f. 
100,000 Construct connector road 100,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

90,000 s.f. X $19.50 per sq. ft.= 1,755,000 
s.f. 

5,000 s.f. X $3.00 per sq. ft. = 15,000 
s.f. 

79,750 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 79,750 

s.f. 

275,000 ACBM floor tile 275,000 

60,000 Removal 60,000 

300,000 Convert old media center to teaching space 300,000 
200,000 Renovate/redesign administration area 200,000 

Subtotal: 2,829,750 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 155,636 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 240,529 

Total Renovation Cost: I $3,225,915 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 9 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: I $853,775 X 0.094. = 80,255 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: ~ Included for new media center 53,200 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $133,455 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $5,058,717 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1. !Replace obsolete facilities 

2.1Building Code I Life Safety 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-380 Arthur W Edwards Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 1 0 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-306 Ben D Quinn Elementary- 2 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 11 of 7 4 Pages 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-306 Ben D Quinn Elementary - 2 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 
75,000 75,000 

0 Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

3,600 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 108,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

28,000 Exterior door replacement 28,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

100,000 s.f. X $19.50 per sq. ft. = 1,950,000 
s.f. 

10,000 s.f. X $3.00 per sq. ft. = 30,000 
s.f. 

29,000 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 29,000 

100,000 New partitions 100,000 

s.f. 

750,000 Convert replace PE area into teaching space 750,000 

Subtotal: 3,070,000 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 168,850 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 260,950 

Total Renovation Cost: I $3,499,800 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 12 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

I 

I 

I 

I 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $1 ,344,420 X 0.094. = 126,375 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: D Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 
--

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $126,375 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $5,131,925 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.!Ease current crowding 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-306 Ben D Quinn Elementary - 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 13 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-308 Bridgeton Elementary - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 14 of 7 4 Pages 

Canst. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 

Building/ Exterior/ Structure 
Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

r-- Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-308 Bridgeton Elementary - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n I Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 
347,620 Provide fiber high speed internet access 347,620 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

30,000 Convert LPG gas to natural gas 30,000 

46,400 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 46,400 

--

s.f. 

Subtotal: 424,020 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 23,321 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 36,042 

Total Renovation Cost: I $483,383 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 15 of74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

I 

I 

I 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: D Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: D Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): I 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $483,383 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Building Code I Life Safety 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-308 Bridgeton Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 16 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 
Additional Land Needed: l I Acres x $1 

250-312 Brinson Memorial Elementary- 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 17 of 7 4 Pages 

Const. Cost:· 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

Parking/ Drives:$ I 
Sewer System: 

Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 

Building/ Exterior/ Structure 
Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec. (describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 

Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 
Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 

Indoor Air Quality:$ 
lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-312 Brinson Memorial Elementary- 4 

52,000 I 52,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n I Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 25,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

104,635 s.f. X $19.50 per sq. ft. = 2,040,382 
s.f. 

5,000 s.f. X $3.00 per sq. ft. = 15,000 
s.f. 

69,600 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 69,600 

s.f. 

225,000 IACBM floor tile replacement 225,000 

Subtotal: 2,426,982 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 133,484 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 206,293 

Total Renovation Cost: I $2,766,759 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 18 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

I 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $2,766,759 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Air Conditioning I Energy Conservation 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-312 Brinson Memorial Elementary- 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 19 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost! sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-316 Creekside Elementary- 2 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 20 of 74 Pages 

Const. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec. (describe):$ 

Bldg_. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

1------

250-316 Creekside Elementary- 2 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

47,850 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 

Total Renovation Cost: I 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 21 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

Cost 

47,850 

I 

I 

47,850 

2,632 

4,067 

$54,549 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: 0 Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1. [BUTiding Code I Life Safety 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

$54,549 

250-316 Creekside Elementary - 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 22 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 
Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 

250-328 Graham A Barden Elementary - 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 23 of 74 Pages 

Const. Cost: 

ons: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec. (describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-328 Graham A Barden Elementary - 2 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 
I 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. I 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 

15,000 s.f. X $1.70 per sq. ft.= 25,500 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

15,000 Panel replacement 15,000 

33,350 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 33,350 

250,000 Install bathrooms for K-1 250,000 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 323,850 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 17,812 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 27,527 

Total Renovation Cost: I $369,189 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 24 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Ease current crowding 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

$369,189 

250-328 Graham A Barden Elementary - 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 25 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-324 Grover C Fields Middle - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 26 of 7 4 Pages 

Const. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bld_g_. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-324 Grover C Fields Middle- 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

50,000 Replace exterior doors 50,000 

s.f. 20,000 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 30,000 
s.f. 

10,000 Panel replacement 10,000 

58,000 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 58,000 

100,000 Restrooms behind the stage 100.000 I 
s.f. 

50,000 50,000 

80,000 80,000 

Subtotal: 398,000 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 21,890 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 33,830 

Total Renovation Cost: I $453,720 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 27 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: D Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.!Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

$453,720 

250-324 Grover C Fields Middle - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 28 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-336 Havelock Elementary - 2 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 29 of 74 Pages 

Const. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-336 Havelock Elementary - 2 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description 

0 Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

37,700 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 

Total Renovation Cost: I 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 30 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

Cost 

--

I 

37,700 

37,700 

2,074 

3,205 

$42,978 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: D Check to add kitchen equipment I 

Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 
Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1. !Building Code I Life Safety 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

$42,978 

250-336 Havelock Elementary - 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 31 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CasU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-340 Havelock High- 2 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 32 of 7 4 Pages 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

1,639,300 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-340 Havelock High - 2 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

80,000 80,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

7,500 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 225,000 

s.f. 

35,000 s.f. X $20.00 per sq. ft. = 700,000 

116,771 s.f. X $2.50 per sq. ft. = 291,928 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 260,000 
s.f. 10,000 
s.f. 100,000 
s.f. 

250,000 Softball lighting 250,000 

43,500 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 43,500 

150,000 150,000 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 2,110,428 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 116,074 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 179,386 

Total Renovation Cost: I $2,405,888 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 33 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $3,535,650 X 0.094. = 332,351 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $332,351 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $6,698,167 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Projected enrollment growth 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-340 Havelock High- 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 34 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-332 H J MacDonald Middle- 3 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 35 of 7 4 Pages 

Const. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
c 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bld_g_. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'll Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-332 H J MacDonald Middle - 3 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

75,000 75,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 

5,300 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 159,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 200,000 

150,000 Facia renovation 150,000 

s.f. 150,000 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 100,000 
s.f. 
s.f. 100,000 
s.f. 

50,750 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 50,750 
300,000 Need 3 elevators 300,000 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 1,284,750 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 70,661 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 109,204 

Total Renovation Cost: I $1,464,615 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 36 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
· 0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $1,464,615 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Building Code I Life Safety 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-332 H J MacDonald Middle - 3 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 37 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-344 Havelock Middle - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 38 of 7 4 Pages 

Const. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec. (describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-344 Havelock Middle - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

65,000 65,000 

0 Check box to add sewer system. 

n 1 
Check box to add a well. 

7,920 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 237,600 

s.f. 

s.f. 

32,000 6th Grade Exterior Doors 32,000 

s.f. 50,000 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 50,000 
s.f. 

36,250 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 36,250 

20,000 20,000 

s.f. 

450,000 Expand/renovate administrative office 450,000 

Subtotal: 940,850 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 51,747 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 79,972 

Total Renovation Cost: l$1,072,569 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 39 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $1,072,569 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-344 Havelock Middle - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 40 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-348 J T Barber Elementary - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 41 of 7 4 Pages 

Canst. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec. (describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-348 J T Barber Elementary - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

56,000 Replace seven sets of exterior doors 56,000 

s.f. 20,000 
65,000 s. f. X $2.25 per sq. ft. = 146,250 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 

50,000 s.f. X $3.00 per sq. ft. = 150,000 
s.f. 

33,350 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 33,350 

s.f. 

200,000 Replace ACBM floor tile 200,000 

70,000 Renovate auditorium 70,000 

Subtotal: 675,600 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 37,158 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 57,426 

Total Renovation Cost: I $770,184 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 42 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: I 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1. !Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

I 

$770,184 

250-348 J T Barber Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 43 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CasU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 
Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 

250-350 James W Smith Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 44 of74 Pages 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-350 James W Smith Elementary - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

50,000 50,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

3,600 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 108,000 
706,040 Provide fiber high speed internet access 706,040 

s.f. 

s.f. 

28,000 Replace exterior doors 28,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 5,000 
s.f. 

12,000 HVAC valve replacement 12,000 

43,500 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 43,500 

100,000 Partitions 100,000 

s.f. 

250,000 Replace PE area to teaching area 250,000 

Subtotal: 1,302,540 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 71,640 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 110,716 

Total Renovation Cost: I $1,484,896 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 45 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $1,344,420 X 0.094. = 126,375 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $126,375 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $3,117,021 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-350 James W Smith Elementary- 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 46 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-356 New Bern High - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 47 of 74 Pages 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

1,639,300 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
' 0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-356 New Bern High - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 
250,000 250,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

15,000 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 450,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

600,000 Doors 600,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

200,000 HVAC modifications 200,000 

44,950 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 44,950 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 1,544,950 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 84,972 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 131,321 

Total Renovation Cost: I $1,761,243 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 48 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $2,080,650 X 0.094. = 195,581 

Kitchen Equipment: D Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $195,581 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $4,287,152 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-356 New Bern High- 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 49 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-360 Oaks Road Elementary - 2 

.f. X $194.00 per sq. ft. = 

.f. X $194.00 . ft. = 

Estimated 
Cost 

232,800 

232 800 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 I /Acre= I 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 50 of 7 4 Pages 
Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'll Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-360 Oaks Road Elementary - 2 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

35,000 35,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 

3,600 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 108,000 
75,000 Fill and drain in the front and back of school 75,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

90,000 Controls/kitchen unit 90,000 

52,200 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 52,200 

s.f. 

30,000 Permanent storage building 30,000 
200,000 ~dd or renovate office areas 200,000 

Subtotal: 590,200 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 32,461 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 50,167 

Total Renovation Cost: I $672,828 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 51 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $1,257,120 X 0.094. = 118,169 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $118,169 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $2,198,971 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.!Building Code I Life Safety 

2.!Replace obsolete facilities 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-360 Oaks Road Elementary - 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 52 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-362 Roger R Bell Elementary - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 53 of 7 4 Pages 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec. (describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-362 Roger R Bell Elementary - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 

3,600 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft.= 108,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

28,000 Exterior door replacements 28,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 15,000 
s.f. 

36,250 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 36,250 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 187,250 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 10,299 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 15,916 

Total Renovation Cost: I $213,465 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 54 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $1 ,344,420 X 0.094. = 126,375 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: D Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): I 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $126,375 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $1,845,590 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.!Replace obsolete facilities 

2.!Building Code I Life Safety 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-362 Roger R Bell Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 55 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost! sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-368 Tucker Creek Middle - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 56 of 74 Pages 

Const. Cost: 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy ( cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-368 Tucker Creek Middle - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

85,000 85,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 
40,000 Fencing 40,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

172,000 Controls/gym 172,000 

123,250 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 123,250 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 420,250 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 23,114 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 35,721 

Total Renovation Cost: I $479,085 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 57 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: 0 Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1. [eplace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

$479,085 

250-368 Tucker Creek Middle - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 58 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-364 Trent Park Elementary- 2 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 59 of 74 Pages 

I /Acre= I 
Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-364 Trent Park Elementary - 2 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

150,000 Reconfigure parking/loading area 150,000 

D I Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 

4,600 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 138,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 

32,000 Four sets of exterior doors 32,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

70,000 Controls 70,000 

33,350 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 33,350 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 423,350 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 23,284 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 35,985 

Total Renovation Cost: I $482,619 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 60 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

I 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $993,765 X 0.094. = 93,414 

Kitchen Equipment: D Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $93,414 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $1,689,050 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Projected enrollment growth 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-364 Trent Park Elementary - 2 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 61 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

.f. X $194.00 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 
Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 

250-320 Vanceboro-Farm Life Elementary- 3 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 62 of 74 Pages 

Estimated 

. ft. = 800 

I /Acre= I 
Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec. (describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'll Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-320 Vanceboro-Farm Life Elementary- 3 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

91,000 91,000 l 
D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

4,800 s.f. X $30.00 per sq. ft. = 144,000 
445,920 Provide fiber high speed internet access 445,920 

s.f. 232,000 

s.f. 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 15,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

50,000 50,000 

52,200 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 52,200 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 1,030,120 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 56,657 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 87,560 

Total Renovation Cost: l$1,174,337 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 63 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

I 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $850,040 X 0.094. = 79,904 

Kitchen Equipment: D Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: M Included for new media center 52,100 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $132,004 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $2,987,762 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-320 Vanceboro-Farm Life Elementary- 3 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 64 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CasU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-372 West Craven High- 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 65 of 74 Pages 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

1,639,300 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-372 West Craven High - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

221,000 Pave student parking lot/repave other areas 221,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

n Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 40,000 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 200,000 
s.f. 

114,000 s.f. X $3.00 per sq. ft.= 342,000 
s.f. 

100,000 Replace AC and art/band/gym 100,000 

29,000 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 29,000 

30,000 30,000 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 962,000 

·v•nul~l:'llvY (5.5% of renovation cost): 52,910 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 81,770 

Total Renovation Cost: l$1,096,680 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 66 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $2,080,650 X 0.094. = 195,581 

Kitchen Equipment: D Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $195,581 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $3,622,589 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1 .!Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-372 West Craven High - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 67 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line CosU sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 

250-376 West Craven Middle - 4 

Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 
printed: 1/7/2016 

Page 68 of 7 4 Pages 

I /Acre= I 

Estimated 
Cost 

1,261,000 

Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'll Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-376 West Craven Middle - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

75,000 Bus parking 75,000 

D I Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. 221,000 

20,000 s.f. X $20.00 per sq. ft. = 400,000 

32,000 Exterior door replacement 32,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

20,000 Interior doors and frames 20,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 75,000 
s.f. 

80,000 Library, 6th grade, chillers 80,000 

21,750 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 21,750 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 924,750 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 50,861 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 78,604 

Total Renovation Cost: I $1,054,215 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 69 of 74 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $3,943,477 X 0.094. =I 370,687 

Kitchen Equipment: n Included for new cafeteria 184,600 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $555,287 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $6,026,196 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.\Ease current crowding 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-376 West Craven Middle - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 70 of 74 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Additions 

*Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $194 

Land Purchase 
Additional Land Needed: I I Acres x $1 

250-378 W Jesse Gurganus Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 71 of 7 4 Pages 

Estimated 

I /Acre= I 
Page 1 of 3 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey Cost Worksheet- Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Renovations 

Site Improvements 
Parking/ Drives:$ 

Sewer System: 
Water System (well): 
Grading/ Drainage:$ 
Canopy (cov. walk): 

Other Sitework (describe):$ 
Building/ Exterior/ Structure 

Roof Replacement: 
Structural Repairs:$ 

Window Replacement: 
Masonry/ Ext. Wall Repairs:$ 

Other Bldg/Exterior (describe):$ 
Interior/ Finishes 

Partition/Wall Construction:$ 
Ceilings: 
Flooring: 
Painting: 

Other Bldg/Interior (describe):$ 
Plumbing/ HVAC/ Electrical 

Air Conditioning: 
Electrical Service: 

Lighting: 
Computer/ Tech. Wiring: 

Plumbing:$ 
Other Plbg/HVAC/Eiec.(describe):$ 

Bldg. Code/ Life Safety 
Bldg. Code/ Life Safety:$ 

ADA Ramps/H.C. Access:$ 
ADA Toilet Renovations:$ 

Fire Alarm:$ 
Sprinkler System: 

Other Code/Safety (describe):$ 
Hazardous Mat'l/ Environmental 

Hazardous Matl. Abatement:$ 
Indoor Air Quality:$ 

lnground Fuel Tanks:$ 
Radon Management:$ 

Other Environmental (describe):$ 
Other Renovations (not incl. above) 

Other Renovations (describe)1.$ 
2.$ 
3.$ 

250-378 W Jesse Gurganus Elementary - 4 

Size/ Amount Notes/ Description Cost 

85,000 85,000 

D Check box to add sewer system. 

D Check box to add a well. 

s.f. 

s.f. 

s.f. 80,000 

s.f. 
s.f. 
s.f. 

s.f. 20,000 
s.f. 
s.f. 10,000 
s.f. 

46,400 Electronically monitor & secure exterior doors 46,400 

s.f. 

Subtotal: 241,400 

Contingency (5.5% of renovation cost): 13,277 

Admin. and Design Fees (8.5% of renovation cost): 20,519 

Total Renovation Cost: I $275,196 

printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 72 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 2 of 3 

i 



2015-16 DPI Facility Needs Survey CostWorksheet-Additions/Renovations 
0- 5 Years Project 

Furnishings/ Equipment 
Furn./ Eqpt. for Addition*: $1,344,420 X 0.094. = 126,375 

Kitchen Equipment: n Check to add kitchen equipment 
Media Center Furnishings*: n Check to add media center furnishings --

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe): 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. $126,375 

Total Cost of Additions and Renovations: $1,907,321 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications Why are these improvements needed? 

1.1Replace obsolete facilities 

2. 

Funding 

Likelihood that County will fund project: 50-50 Chance 

If "Very Unlikely," wlhy will County 
funding not be available? 

What other funding sources are 
available for the project? 

250-378 W Jesse Gurganus Elementary - 4 printed: 1/7/2016 
Page 73 of 7 4 Pages 

Page 3 of 3 



Construction Cost- 0 - 5 Year Project 

Date: 11 /5 /2016 I Area (sq. ft.) per student: 97 Cost Estimate 

Building Construction: 55,000 s.f. x $183.02 per s.f. = $10,066,078 

Is land already owned by the LEA for this school? If not, enter land cost in the box for "Land Purchase" below. 

Site Development (13.00% of 1 0,066,078): 

Bldg/Site Cost ($206.81 /s.f.): 

Sewer System: D Check box for on-site sewer system. 

Water System (well): D Check box for well. 

Demolition of Exist. Buildings: s.f. 

Other Const. Costs (describe):$ 

Contingency ( 4% of $11 ,374,668): 

Admin. and Design Fees ( 7% of $11,374,668 ): 

Total Construction Cost: 

Furnishings/ Equipment 

Furnishings and Equipment (9.4% of $10,066,078. ): 

Kitchen Equipment: 

Other Furn./ Eqpt. (describe):$ 800,000 CTE Lab Equipment 

Total Furn./ Eqpt. 

Land Purchase ( 36 acres min. site area recommended ) 

New Site Area: 36 Acres x $ I 55,000 I /Acre= 

Total Cost: 

Base-line Cost/ sq.ft.: $ 194 

Notes/Comments: 

Justifications: (Why are these improvements needed?) 

1. Projected enrollment growth 

2. 

1,308,590 

11,374,668 

454,987 

796,227 

$12,625,881 

946,211 

150,000 

800,000 

$1,896,211 

$1,980,000 

$16,502,093 

250-100- Craven County Career Technical Center printed: 1/5/2016 Page 1 of 1 

Page 7 4 of 7 4 Pages 



JCPC FUNDING AND REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS 16-17 
Funding Available: $254,570.00 

Committee Members: Jennifer Dacey Kitti Hardison Robert Keeter 
Johnnie Sampson, Jr. Todd Shuart Jackie Smith 

NEEDED PROGRAMS PROGRAM CURRENT REQUEST RECOMMENDATI 
FUNDING 16-17 ON 

1. Parent/Family Skill Building Services Celebrating Families 0.00 33,805.00 23,805.00 

2. Community Day-Structured Day Area Day Reporting Center 121,084.00 121,084.00 107,136.00 
Reporting 

2. Community Service/Restitution Juvenile Restitution Program 62,918.00 62,918.00 62,918.00 

3. Teen Court Services Teen Court 68,168.00 74,397.00 59,711.00 
----··. -'-----·· 

~ 
-+-

~ 
t 
* .t-



0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
..... 

~
 

It)
 

...:-
~
 

It)
 

N
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
~
 

0 
0 

"'':t 
C

D
 

N
' 

~
 

M
 

M
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
..... 

"'':t 
It)

 
N
~
 

~
 

It)
 

N
 

t/J 
"'0 
1:: 
::::s 

LL. 
Q

) 

>
 

; CI:S 
r.. 

- t/J '2 
'§ 
"'0 
<

( 
(..) 

t/J 

a. 
m

 
-

(..) 
~
 

..., 



DISTRIB TION : 

ORIG fNAL: FJN AN E 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMEN 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

1. Fund: General ------------------------------------- 2. Department: _o_s_s_T_A_N_F_ 7_23_1 _ ______ _ _ 

3. Revenue Account Number(s) Amount 4. Expenditure Account Number(s) Amount 
1 01 -7231-349.28-0C CPS Staff & Ovhd 26,400.00 101-7231-450.39-30 Special Adoption 26,400.00 

Total: 26,400.00 Total: 26,400.00 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 
Funds received from the Special Adoption fund. Funds are awarded by the State based on the number of adoptions that are finalized, 
and are given to DSS to use in the adoption program. There is no County match, and unspent funds are to be rolled forward to the next 
fiscal year. 

County Commissioners/Chairman 

fN BA - Revised 0\0907 

Apr11,2016 

Date 

Date 

County IVlanager Date 

Journal Entry Number Date 



Kimberly Morton 

-------------------------------------------------------------
From: Mary Guilfoyle 
Sent: 
To: 

Friday, April 08, 2016 2:42 PM 
Kimberly Morton; Alfreda Stout 

Subject: Fwd: Adoption Promotion Program Fund 

---------- Forwarded n1essage ----------
From: Mary Guilfoyle <nlarv.guilfoy1e(a)cravencountvnc.go > 
Date: Wed, Mar 23 2016 at 1:56PM 
Subject: Fwd: Adoption Prmnotion Program Fund 
To: Alfreda Stout <alfreda.stout@cravencountync.gov>, Kimberly Morton 
<kimberly .m rton@cravencountync.gov> 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Best, Kimberly R <Kimb rly.Be t@dhh .nc.gov> 
Date: Wed, Mar23, 2016 at 1:01PM 
Subject: Adoption Promotion Progrrun Fund 
To: Mary Guilfoyle <mary.guilfovl @cravencountync.gov>, Faye Legacy <fayc .legacy(@.cra ncountync.gov> 

Good afternoon, 

Please be advised that a request for payment in the runount of $26,400 has been sent to the Office of the 
Controller effective Nfarch 2 3, 2016. This payment is from the Adoption Pron1otion Program Fund ru1d covers 
the following service n1onth(s): OcLober, 1Vovember, December, Janu01y, FebruaJJl & A1arch. This email 
serves as notice that payn1ent bas been requested, not that payment has been sent. Be sure to check with your 
accounting unit within in the next 30 days to verify your payment. 

Legislation regarding the Adoption Promotion Program Fund specifically states that the money "nutst be used 
to enhance the adoption services progra11z." 

Thank you for your efforts to provide pern1anency for the children of North Carolina. If you have questions, 
feel free to contact 1ne. 

Have a great day! 

1 



Kimberly R. Best) BSW 

NC Kids Program Consultant II 

Division of Social Services, Child Welfare Section 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services 

919 527 6354 office 

an 625 4374 fax 

Kimberly. best@dhhs. nc.gov 

820 S. Boylan Avenue 

2445 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh, NC 27699-2445 

Noth"n Co par ~ 

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 

f\Jort/1 Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third partie 

Twitter YouTube 

Unauthorized disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged, or otherwise confidential information. including confidential information relating to an ongoing State 
procurement effort, is prohibited by law. If you have received this e-mail in error. please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this e-mail. 

2 



CRAVEN COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
Board of Health & Board of Commissioners Fee Approval 

Recommendation 

Date of Request: April11, 2016 

[RJ New Fee Recommendation 

1. Description: 90620 I Serogroup B Meningococcal Vaccine (MenB) 

Current Fee: N/A Medicaid Rate: $171.74 Proposed Rate: $172.00 

Cost per vaccine: $154.40 

Reason/ Justification: New vaccine. Patients will incur an Administrative Fee of $1 7. 00 in 
addition to the vaccine listed above. This fee covers the vaccine, staff time, and 
cost of supplies. 

Recommended Effective Date: May 1, 2016 

2. Description: 93 784 I Ambulatory Blood Pressure Monitoring 

Current Fee: N/A Medicare Rate: $56.19 Proposed Rate: $57.00 

Reason/Justification: Ambulatory blood pressure monitoring, utilizing a system such as 
magnetic tape and/or computer disk, for 24 hours or longer; including recording, scanning 
analysis, interpretation and report. A new machine was purchased with Medicaid incentive 
monies (MU) to monitor hypertensive patients and we need to bill for those services. 

Recommended Effective Date: May 1, 2016 

Approvals: 

Administrative Officer/Date 

Health Director/Date 

Board of Health Chairperson/Date 

Board of Commissioner's Approval /Date 

Page 1 of1 



CRAVEN COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
Board of Health & Board of Commissioners Fee Approval 

Recommendation 

Date ofReguest: April11, 2016 

I][] Fee Change Recommendation 

Description: S0281 - Medical Home Postpartum Visit 

Current Fee: $50.00 Proposed Fee: $150.00 

Recommended Effective Date: March 18, 2016 

Reason I Justification: Pregnant Medicaid patients identified as being high risk for poor birth outcomes 
receive individualize case management services. In exchange for meeting the program expectations the 
medical home can receive an incentive. The Medicaid incentive reimbursement rate for a Medical Home 
Postpartum visit is $150; we are currently charging $50. Updating our charge to the current Medicaid rate 
will give us an additional $1 00 per visit. 

Approvals: 

Administrative Officer/Date 

Health Director/Date 

Board of Health Chairperson/Date 

Board of Commissioner's Approval/Date 

Pagel ofl 



FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

1. Fund: GENERAL 2. Department: HEALTH/ 

5,800 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 

DISTRIBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

Care Mgmt 

Amount 

5,800 

Needed to cover cost of contract employee who is currently working 2 days/week. Contract employee assists with high risk maternity 
patients in order to ensure proper manangement care. There is only $489 remaining in contract employee line. 
(16hrs/wk x $32.75/hr x 12wks = $6,288) 
Medicaid Revenues currently averages $18k per month; our budget only estimated $16k per month. More than enough revenues 
to cover add'l expense. 

County Commissioners/Chainnan Date Journal Entry Number Date 

FINBA-Revised 010907 



DISTRIBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

1. Fund: General ------------------------------------- 2. Department: Planning ------------------------------

3. Revenue Account Number(s) Amount 4. Expenditure Account Number(s) Amount 
1 01-0000-399-01-00 fund balance 15,472.00 101-4002-430-40-00 haz mitigate contract 61,887.00 
101-4002-349-36-00 haz mitigation state 46,415.00 

Total: 61,887.00 Total: 61,887.00 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 
Planning Department was notified by NC Dept of Public Safety that Craven County has received a Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant to install 
storm shutters on the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) at 411 Craven St. The grant is 75% state share and 25% local share. Need to 
budget these lines in order to proceed with the installation of the shutters. 

~"G.,-L- i'.t/1-' 
Department Head Date County Manager Date 

County Commissioners/Chairman Date J oumal Entry Number Date 

FINBA- Revised 010907 



North Carolina Department of Public Safety 
Emergency Management 

Pat McCrory, Governor 
Frank L. Perry, Secretary 

Memorandum 

Date: November 5, 2015 

To: Donald Barungardner, Planning Director 
Craven CoWlty Government 

From: Joyce Holley, Hazard Mitigation Specialist 
North Carolina Emergency Management 

Michael A. Sprayberry, Director 

RE: Grant Agreement for Craven County, PDMC-PJ~04-NC-2014-001 
Wind Retrofit Project- New Project 

Enclosed is one copy of the fully executed Grant Agreement for your 
records. We will contact you shortly to set up a project implementation meeting to 
discuss Standard Operating guidelines. You are reminded that monthly progress 
reports are a condition of this grant and should be submitted no later than the 
tenth of each month. 

You will soon receive an initial cost report cover page from our fiscal 
section in a separate mailing. We will provide you with technical assistance for 
claiming reimbursement of your eligible expenses. 

If you have any questions in the meantime, please feel free to contact me at 
(919) 825-2323. I look forward to working with you in the coming months. 

Attachment 

JH!krb 

MAILING ADDRESS: 
4238 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh NC 27699-4236 

www.ncern.org 

An Equal Opporlunity Employer 

OFFICE LOCATION: 
4105 Reedy Creek Road 
Raleigh, NC 27607-3371 

Telephone: (919) 825-2500 
Fax: (919) 715-9191 



PROJECT: PDMC-PJ-04;..NC-2014-001 
COST CENTER: 1509807235C5 FY14 

CFDA: 97.047 

NORTH CAROLINA 
PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

THIS PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION (PDM) PROGRAM AGREEMENT (the 
Agreement) is entered into by and between the State of North Carolina, Department of Public 
Safety, Division of Emergency Management, Raleigh, North Carolina (hereinafter referred to 
as the "AGENCY/ GRANTEE"), and Craven County, North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as 
the "RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE"). 

WHEREAS, Congress authorized financial assistance to States and communities for Pre
Disaster Mitigation activities; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency recognizes a need to provide 
States and communities with much needed source of pre-disaster mitigation funding for cost
effective hazard mitigation activities that are part of a comprehensive mitigation program, and 
that reduce injuries, loss of life, and damage and destruction of property; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Emergency Management Act, N.C.G.S.§166A-1 et.seq., 
N.C.G.S. §166A-6.0l(b)(2)a.3. (Senate Bill 300), N.C.G.S. §143B-476; §203 and §322 of the 
Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §5121 et seq., as 
amended, §102 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of2000, P.L. 107-73, 115 Stat 651, Department 
of Veterans Affairs and Housing and Urban Development, and Independent Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2002 and Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) §83.557 
authorize the relationship as described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE represents that it is fully qualified, 
possesses the requisite skills, knowledge, qualifications and experience to provide the services 
identified herein, and does agree to perform as described herein; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the AGENCY/GRANTEE and the RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE 
do mutually agree as follows: 

(1) SCOPE OF WORK 

The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall fully perform the approved Pre-Disaster 
Mitigation (PDM) project, as described in the approved FEMA application as 
described in Attachment A, in accordance with the approved scope of work in the 
approved FEMA application, the estimate of costs indicated in the approved 
FEMA application, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE shall not deviate from the approved project and the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 1 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



comply with any and all applicable codes and standards in performing work 
funded under this Agreement, and shall provide any appropriate maintenance and 
security for the project. The project costs are an estimate only. The final project 
costs will be determined according to the policies and procedures in the applicable 
North Carolina Division of Emergency Management Standard Operating 
Procedure. 

(2) FUNDING AND INSURANCE 

The AGENCY/GRANTEE shall provide Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program Funds 
for costs incurred in performing the Project identified in the approved FEMA 
application as identified in Attachment A as follows: 

A. Wind Retrofit Project 
Total Number of Locations - 2 

2 

Total Estimated Project Costs 

Total Costs 
$80,173.00 

$80,173.00 

The total estimated project costs are an estimate only. The final project costs will 
be determined according to the policies and procedures in the applicable North 
Carolina Division of Emergency Management Standard Operating Procedure. 

B. Funding Sources 

1. Estimated Federal Share for PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 $60,129.75 
$20,043.25 2. Estimated Local Share for PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 

3. Estimated State Share for 
4. Federal Share ofRecipient/Subgrantee 

Administrative Cost for 
5. State Share of Recipient/Subgrantee 

Administrative Cost for 

TOTAL FOR PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 $80,173.00 

Allowable costs shall be determined in accordance with the Robert T. Stafford 
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S. C. §5121 et seq., as 
amended, §102 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of2000; 44 C.P.R. Part 13; 
2 C.F.R. Part 200; OMB Circular A-87, N.C.G.S. §166A-6.01(b)(2)b. (Senate Bill 
300), and other applicable Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program guidance. 

The RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE shall utilize the forms entitled "Request for 
Advance" and "Cost Report" to obtain funds under this agreement. RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE shall not receive funds under this agreement if it does not submit 
a Cost Report or Request For Advance form. To receive funds under this 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 2 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



agreement, RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE shall complete the Designated Agent 
Form and forward it to the appropriate Division of Emergency Management Pre
Disaster Mitigation Program Project Manager. As per Paragraph 12(d) of this 
Agreement, if RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE designates different representatives 
or designated agents, RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall notify AGENCY I 
GRANTEE. 

To receive funds under this agreement, the Designated Agent shall sign the Cost 
Report or Request for Advance Form. These forms are hereby incorporated into 
this Agreement by reference. Following full execution of this Agreement, the 
Fiscal Section of the Department of Public Safety will forward the Cost Report to 
the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE. (See sample Cost Report attached). 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall complete the Cost Report and attach 
appropriate invoices or other appropriate documentation and forward it to the 
appropriate Division of Emergency Management Hazard Mitigation Project 
Manager or Hazard Mitigation Specialist. AGENCY/ GRANTEE will reimburse 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE for eligible costs in increments of Five Hundred 
Dollars ($500.00) or greater. 

The final payment of funds will be made only after the project created pursuant 
hereto has been completed by the RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE and approved by 
the AGENCY/GRANTEE, submission of all required documentation and a 
request for final reimbursement. 

RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE agrees, as a condition of receipt of funding 
pursuant to this Agreement, where necessary, to obtain reasonably available, 
adequate, and necessary insurance for the type or types of hazard for which the 
major disaster was declared, in accordance with the requirements of the Flood 
Insurance Administration (FIA), 44 C.P.R. Parts 206,209 and any other 
applicable law or regulation. 

(3) DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS PROHIBITION 

In accordance with the provisions of 42 U.S. C. 05155 (Section 312 of the 
Stafford Act) duplication of benefits is prohibited. The 
RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE shall notify the AGENCY /GRANTEE, as soon as 
practicable, of the existence of any insurance coverage for the costs identified in 
the application, and of any entitlement to or recovery of funds from any other 
source for the Project costs, including, as applicable, Federal, State, local and 
private funding. Allowable costs shall be reduced by the amount of duplicate 
sources available. The RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE shall be liable to the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE to the extent that the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE 
receives duplicate benefits from any other source for the same purposes for which 
the RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE has received payment from the 
AGENCY /GRANTEE. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 3 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



The RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE shall immediately remit to the AGENCY I 
GRANTEE any duplication of benefits payment received by the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE. In the event the AGENCY/GRANTEE determines a duplication 
of benefits has occurred RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE hereby authorizes the 
Controller of the Department of Public Safety to take offset action against any 
other available funding due the RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE. In addition, 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall ensure, as a condition of funding under this 
Agreement, that all required Privacy Act releases and Duplication of Benefit 
paperwork is completed. 

(4) INCORPORATION OF LAWS, RULES, REGULATIONS AND POLICIES 

Both the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE and the AGENCY/GRANTEE shall be 
governed by applicable State and Federal laws, rules and regulations, including 
but not limited to those identified in Attachments B, C, and D. 

(5) PERIOD OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement becomes effective upon execution of the signatures of all parties. 
The date of execution shall be the date of the last signature. The termination date 
is June 30, 2016 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of 
paragraphs (6), (8), (11), (13) or(17). 

(6) MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT 

Either party may request modification of the provisions of this Agreement. 
Changes, which are mutually agreed upon, shall be valid only when reduced in 
writing, duly signed by each of the parties hereto, and attached in the original of 
this Agreement. 

(7) RECORD KEEPING, PROCUREMENT AND PROPERTY 
MANAGEMENT 

(a) If applicable, RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE's performance under this 
Agreement shall be subject to 44 C.F.R. Part 13, "Uniform Administrative 
Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local 
Governments" and/or OMB Circular No. A-110, "Grants and Agreements 
with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Nonprofit 
Organizations," and/or OMB Circular No. A-87, "Cost Principles for State 
and Local Governments," OMB Circular No. A-21, "Cost Principles for 
Educational Institutions," 2 C.F.R. Part 200 or OMB Circular No. A-122, 
"Cost Principles for Nonprofit Organizations." 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 4 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(b) If applicable, all financial and programmatic records, supporting 
documents statistical records and other records of RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE shall be retained pursuant to 44 C.P.R. Part 13, 2 C.F.R. 
Part 200 and 9 NCAC Part 3M. All original records pertinent to this 
Agreement shall be retained by the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE for five 
years following the date of termination of this Agreement or of submission 
of the final closeout report, whichever is later, with the following 
exceptions: 

• If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration 
of the five year period and extends beyond the five year period, 
the records will be maintained until all litigation, claims or 
audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

(c) All records, including supporting documentation of all program costs, 
shall be sufficient to determine compliance with the requirements and 
other applicable laws and regulations. 

(d) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE, its employees or agents, including all 
subcontractors or consultants to be paid from funds provided under this 
Agreement, shall allow access to its records at reasonable times to the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE, its employees, and agents. "Reasonable" shall be 
construed according to the circumstances but ordinarily shall mean during 
normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00p.m., local time, on Monday 
through Friday. "Agents" shall include, but not be limited to, auditors 
retained by the AGENCY/GRANTEE. 

(8) REPORTS 

(a) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall provide monthly progress reports 
to the AGENCY/GRANTEE, using the attached Progress Report Form, 
Attachment F. Reports are due by the tenth of the following month. 
Reports shall indicate the status and completion date for each project 
funded, any problems or circumstances affecting completion dates, or the 
scope of work, or the project costs, and any other factors reasonably 
anticipated to result in noncompliance with the terms of the grant award. 
Interim inspections shall be scheduled by the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE prior to the final inspection and may be 
requested by the AGENCY/GRANTEE based on information supplied in 
the progress reports. 

The AGENCY /GRANTEE may require additional reports as needed. The 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall, as soon as possible, provide any 
additional reports requested by the AGENCY/GRANTEE. The 
AGENCY/GRANTEE contact will be the Division of Emergency 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 5 PDMC-PJ~04-NC~2014-001 Craven County 



Management Hazard Mitigation Project Manager or Hazard Mitigation 
Specialist for all reports and requests for reimbursement. 

(b) RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall provide the AGENCY/GRANTEE 
with a close-out report on forms provided by the AGENCY /GRANTEE. 
The close-out report is due no later than forty-five ( 45) days after 
termination of this Agreement or upon completion and approval of the 
project that is the subject of this Agreement. 

(c) If all required reports and copies are not sent to the AGENCY/GRANTEE 
or are not completed in a manner acceptable to the AGENCY /GRANTEE, 
the AGENCY/GRANTEE may withhold further payments until they are 
completed or may take such other action as set forth in paragraph (11 ). 
The AGENCY/GRANTEE may terminate the Agreement with a 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE if reports are not received within thirty (30) 
days after written notice by the AGENCY/GRANTEE. "Acceptable to the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE" means that the work product was completed in 
accordance with generally accepted principles and is consistent with the 
Budget and Scope of Work, Attachment A. 

(d) Upon request by the AGENCY/GRANTEE, the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE shall provide such additional program updates or 
information as may be required by the AGENCY/GRANTEE. 

(9) MONITORING 

The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall constantly monitor its performance under 
this Agreement to ensure that time schedules are being met, the Budget and Scope 
of Work is being accomplished within specified time periods, and other 
performance goals are being achieved. Such review shall be made for each 
function, or activity set forth in Attachment A to this Agreement and incorporated 
by reference herein. 

(10) LIABILITY 

(a) Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer on 
any other person any rights or remedies in or by reason of this Agreement. 
This Agreement does not give any person or entity other than the parties 
hereto any legal or equitable claim, right or remedy. This Agreement is 
intended for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto. This 
Agreement is not made for the benefit of any third person or persons. No 
third party may enforce any part of this Agreement or shall have any rights 
hereunder. This Agreement does not create, and shall not be construed as 
creating, any rights enforceable by any person not a party to this 
Agreement. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 6 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(b) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (c) below, the RECIPIENT I 
SUBGRANTEE shall be solely responsible to parties with whom it shall 
deal in carrying out the terms of this agreement, and shall save the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE harmless against all claims of whatever nature by 
third parties arising out of the performance of work under this agreement. 
For purposes of this agreement, RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE agrees that 
it is not an employee or agent of the AGENCY /GRANTEE, but is an 
independent contractor. 

(c) RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE who is a state agency or subdivision, agrees 
to be fully responsible for its own negligent acts or omissions or tortious 
acts. Nothing herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign 
immunity by any RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE to which sovereign 
immunity applies. Nothing herein shall be construed as consent by a state 
agency or subdivision of the State of North Carolina to be sued by third 
parties in any matter arising out of any contract. 

(11) DEFAULT: REMEDIES: TERMINATION 

(a) If any of the following events occur ("Events of Default"), all obligations 
on the part of the AGENCY/GRANTEE to make any further payment of 
funds hereunder shall, if the AGENCY /GRANTEE so elects, terminate, 
and the AGENCY/GRANTEE may at its option exercise any of its 
remedies set forth herein, but the AGENCY /GRANTEE may make any 
payments or parts of payments after the happening of any Events of 
Default without thereby waiving the right to exercise such remedies, and 
without becoming liable to make any further payment: 

1. If any warranty or representation made by the RECIPIENT I 
SUBGRANTEE in this Agreement or any previous Agreement 
with the AGENCY/GRANTEE shall at any time be false or 
misleading in any respect, or if the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE 
shall fail to keep, observe or perform any of the terms or covenants 
contained in this Agreement or any previous agreement with the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE and has not cured such in timely fashion, or 
is unable or unwilling to meet its obligations thereunder; 

2. If any material adverse change shall occur in the financial 
condition of the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE at any time during 
the term of this Agreement from the fmancial condition revealed in 
any reports filed or to be filed with the AGENCY /GRANTEE, and 
the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE fails to cure said material 
adverse change within thirty (3 0) days from the time the date 
written notice is sent by the AGENCY/GRANTEE; 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 7 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



3. If any reports required by this Agreement have not been submitted 
to the AGENCY/GRANTEE or have been submitted with 
incorrect, incomplete or insufficient information; 

4. If the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE has failed to perform and 
complete in timely fashion any of the services required under the 
Budget and Scope of Work attached hereto as "Attachment A". 

5. If the necessary funds are not available to fund this agreement as a . 
result of action by Congress, the N.C. Legislature, or the Office of 
State Budget and Management. 

(b) Upon the happening of an Event of Default, then the AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE may, at its option, upon written notice to the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE and upon the RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE's failure to 
timely cure, exercise any one or more of the following remedies, either 
concurrently or consecutively, and the pursuit of any one of the following 
remedies shall not preclude the AGENCY/GRANTEE from pursuing any 
other remedies contained herein or otherwise provided at law or in equity: 

1. Terminate this Agreement, provided that the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE is given at least fifteen (15) days prior written 
notice of such termination. The notice shall be effective when 
placed in the United States mail, first class mail, postage prepaid, 
by registered or certified mail return receipt requested, to the 
address set forth in paragraph (12) herein; 

2. Commence an appropriate legal or equitable action to enforce 
performance of this Agreement; 

3. Withhold or suspend payment of all or any part of a request for 
payment; 

4. Exercise any other rights or remedies which may otherwise be 
available under law. 

(c) The AGENCY /GRANTEE may terminate this Agreement for cause upon 
such written notice to RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof, at least one (1) day before the 
effective date of termination. Cause shall include, but not be limited to, 
misrepresentation in the grant application, misuse of funds; fraud; lack of 
compliance with applicable rules, laws and regulations; failure to perform 
in a timely manner, and refusal by the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE to 
permit public access to any document, paper, letter, or other material 
subject to disclosure under N.C. General Statutes. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 8 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(d) Suspension or termination constitutes final AGENCY/GRANTEE action. 
Notification of suspension or termination shall include notice of 
administrative hearing rights and time frames. 

(e) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall return funds to the AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE if found in non-compliance with laws, rules, regulations 
governing the use of the funds or this Agreement. 

(f) Notwithstanding the above, the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall not be 
relieved of liability to the AGENCY /GRANTEE by virtue of any breach 
of Agreement by the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE. The AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE may, to the extent authorized by law, withhold any payments 
to the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE for purpose of set-off until such time 
as the exact amount of damages due the AGENCY/GRANTEE from the 
RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE is determined. 

(12) NOTICE AND CONTACT 

(a) All notices provided under or pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing, first class, certified mail, return receipt requested, to the 
representative identified below and said notification attached to the 
original of this Agreement. 

(b) The name and address of the AGENCY/GRANTEE contract manager for 
this Agreement is: 

Nicholas M. Burk 
Section Manager for Hazard Mitigation Grants 
Department of Public Safety 
NC Division of Emergency Management 
4105 Reedy Creek Road 
Raleigh, NC 27607 

(c) The name and address of the Representative of the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE (Designated Agent) responsible for the administration of 
this Agreement is: 

Mailing Address: 
Donald Baumgardner 
Craven County 
Planning and Community Development Director 
2828 Neuse Blvd. 
New Bern, NC 28560 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 9 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



Overnight Address: 
Donald Baumgardner 
Craven County 
Planning and Community Development Director 
2828 Neuse Blvd. 
New Bern, NC 28560 

(13) OTHER PROVISIONS 

(a) The validity of this Agreement is subject to the truth and accuracy of all 
the information, representations, and materials submitted or provided by 
the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE, in the Application, in any subsequent 
submission or response to the AGENCY/ GRANTEE request, or any 
submission or response to fulfill the requirements of this Agreement, and 
such information, representations, and materials are incorporated by 
reference. The lack of accuracy thereof or any material changes shall, at 
the option of the AGENCY/GRANTEE and with thirty (30) days written 
notice to the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE, cause the termination of this 
Agreement and the release of the AGENCY I GRANTEE from all its 
obligations to the RECIPIENT I SUBGRANTEE. 

(b) This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State ofNorth 
Carolina and venue for any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be 
filed in State Court in Wake County, North Carolina. If any provision 
hereof is in conflict with any applicable statute or rule, or is otherwise 
unenforceable, then such provision shall be deemed null and void to the 
extent of such conflict, and shall be deemed severable, but shall not 
invalidate any other provision of this Agreement. 

(c) No waiver by the AGENCY/GRANTEE of any right or remedy granted 
hereunder or failure to insist on strict performance by the RECIPIENT I 
SUBGRANTEE shall affect or extend or act as a waiver of any other right 
or remedy of the AGENCY/GRANTEE hereunder, or affect the 
subsequent exercise of the same right or remedy by the AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE for any further or subsequent default by the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE. Any power of approval or disapproval granted to the 
AGENCY I GRANTEE under the terms of this Agreement shall survive 
the terms and life of this agreement as a whole. 

(d) All National Flood Insurance Program documentation and repetitive loss 
information will bear the notice: 

"The information contained in this document is legally privileged and 
confidential. Its use is protected under the privacy act of 1974,5 U.S.C., 
Section 552(a). Use of this information should be restricted to applicable 
routine use cited in the systems notice published in 56 FR 26415." 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 10 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(14) AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

(a) If applicable, RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall provide the following 
completed documentation to the AGENCY /GRANTEE: 

• Designation of Applicant's Agent; 
• State-Applicant Disaster Assistance Agreement; 
• Private Non-Profit Organization Certification (if required); 
• Summary of Documentation Form itemizing actual costs expended for 

large project payment requests; 
• Monthly Progress Reports; 
• Hard copies of Single Audit Reports within 60 days of close of fiscal 

year. 

If the RECIPENT/SUBGRANTEE fails to provide any of the 
documentation discussed or requested in this Agreement, the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE will be under no obligation to reimburse the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE for eligible expenses. 

(b) The RECIPIENT /SUBGRANTEE agrees to maintain fmancial 
procedures and support documents and to establish and maintain a proper 
accounting system to record expenditures of disaster assistance funds in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles or as directed by 
the Governor's Authorized Representative, to account for the receipt and 
expenditure of funds under this Agreement. If applicable, 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall conduct audit(s) pursuant to the Single 
Audit Act ofl984, 31 U.S.C. §7501 et.seq., 44 C.F.R. Part 14,2 C.F.R. 
Part200, OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-profit Organizations," and applicable North Carolina laws, rules 
and regulations. Further, RECIPIENT/SUGRANTEE must provide a hard 
copy of the Single Audit Report within sixty (60) days of the close of its 
fiscal year. Otherwise, pursuant to 44 C.F.R. §13.43, the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE may withhold or suspend payments under any 
grant award. 

(c) These records shall be available at all reasonable times for inspection, 
review, or audit by the N.C. State Auditor and other personnel duly 
authorized by the AGENCY/GRANTEE. "Reasonable" shall be construed 
according to circumstances, but ordinarily shall mean normal business 
hours of8:00 a.m. to 5:00p.m., Eastern Standard Time, Monday through 
Friday. 

(d) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall also provide the AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE with the records, reports or financial statements upon request 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 11 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



for the purposes of auditing and monitoring the funds awarded under this 
Agreement. 

(e) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall provide the AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE and the Office of the State Auditor with an annual fmancial 
audit report. The annual financial audit report shall include all 
management letters and the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE's response to all 
findings, including corrective actions to be taken. 

(f) In the event the audit shows that the entire funds disbursed hereunder, or 
any portion thereof, were not spent in accordance with the conditions of 
this Agreement, the RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE shall be held liable for 
reimbursement to the AGENCY /GRANTEE of all funds not spent in 
accordance with these applicable regulations and Agreement provisions 
within thirty (30) days after the AGENCY /GRANTEE has notified the 
RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE of such non-compliance. 

(g) The RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE shall retain all financial records, 
supporting documents, statistical records, and any other documents 
pertinent to this contract for a period of five years after the date of 
submission of the final expenditures report. However, if litigation or an 
audit has been initiated prior to the expiration of the five-year period, the 
records shall be retained until the litigation or audit findings have been 
resolved. 

(15) SUBCONTRACTS 

(a) If the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE subcontracts any or all of the work 
required under this Agreement, the RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE agrees 
to include in the subcontract that the subcontractor is bound by the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement with the AGENCY/GRANTEE. 

(b) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE agrees to include in the subcontract that 
the subcontractor shall hold the AGENCY/ GRANTEE and RECIPIENT/ 
SUB GRANTEE harmless against all claims of whatever nature arising out 
of the subcontractor's performance of work under this Agreement, to the 
extent allowed and required by law. 

(c) If the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE subcontracts, a copy of the executed 
subcontract must be forwarded to the AGENCY/ GRANTEE within ten 
(1 0) days of execution of said subcontract. 

(d) Contractual arrangement shall in no way relieve the RECIPIENT I 
SUBGRANTEE of its responsibilities to ensure that all funds issued 
pursuant to this grant be administered in accordance with all state and 
federal requirements. 

Pre--Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 12 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(16) TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

This Agreement and any exhibits and amendments annexed hereto and any 
documents incorporated specifically by reference represents the entire Agreement 
between the parties and supersedes all prior oral and written statements or 
agreements. 

(17) STANDARD CONDITIONS 

The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE agrees to be bound by the following standard 
conditions: 

(a) The State of North Carolina's performance and obligation to pay under this 
Agreement is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the North 
Carolina Legislature (where applicable) and/or the Congress of the United 
States to provide funding for Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant projects. 

(b) If otherwise allowed under this Agreement, extension of an agreement for 
contractual services shall be in writing and shall be subject to the same 
terms and conditions set forth in the initial agreement. 

Upon FEMA approval, there will be only one extension of the agreement 
unless the failure to meet the criteria set forth in the agreement for 
completion of the agreement is due to events beyond the control of the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE. 

(c) The AGENCY/GRANTEE reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this 
Agreement for refusal by the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE to allow 
public access to all documents, papers, letters or other material subject to 
the provisions of the N.C. General Statutes and made or received by the 
Contractor/RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE in conjunction with the 
Agreement. 

(18) ATTACHMENTS 

(a) All attachments to this Agreement are incorporated as if set out fully 
herein. 

(b) In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the language of this 
Agreement and the attachments hereto, the language of such attachments 
shall be controlling, but only to the extent of such conflict or 
inconsistency. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 13 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(c) This Agreement includes the following attachments or documents 
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein: 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 

9. 

10. 

Attachment A 
Attachment B 
Attachment C 
Attachment D 
Attachment E 

(19) FUNDING/CONSIDERATION 

Approved Project Budget & Scope of Work 
Program Statutes and Regulations 
Lobbying Prohibition/Certification 
Statement of Assurances 
Special Conditions 
Cost Report and Request for Advance 
Progress Report Form 
N.C. Division of Emergency Management 
minimum criteria for local hazard mitigation 
plans 
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Competitive Grant 
Program 
Application Approved by FEMA 
The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE's 
application to the State for funding under the 
FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation Competitive 
Grant Program 

(a) Any advance payment under this Agreement is subject to the approval of 
the AGENCY/GRANTEE. The amount that may be advanced may not 
exceed the expected cash needs of the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE for a 
three-day period. For a federally funded contract, any advance payment is 
also subject to 44 C.F.R. Part 13,2 C.F.R. Part 200, Federal OMB 
Circulars, A-110, A-122 and the Cash Management Improvement Act of 
1990. If an advance payment is requested, the budget data on which the 
request is based and a justification statement shall be submitted to the 
Division of Emergency Management Contract Manager using the Cost 
Report and Request for 
Advance Form. RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall specify the amount of 
advance payment needed and provide an explanation of the necessity for 
and proposed use of these funds. 

(b) All funds shall be requested using the appropriate forms that are provided 
by the AGENCY/GRANTEE. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 14 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(20) STATE LOBBYING PROIDBITION 

No funds or other resources received from the AGENCY/GRANTEE in 
connection with this Agreement may be used directly or indirectly to influence 
legislation or any other official action by the. N.C. General Assembly or any state 
department. 
Refer to Attachment C for additional terms and provisions relating to lobbying. 

(21) LEGAL AUTHORIZATION 

The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE certifies with respect to this Agreement that it 
possesses the legal authority to receive the funds to be provided under this 
Agreement and that, if applicable, its governing body has authorized, by 
resolution or otherwise, the execution and acceptance of this Agreement with all 
covenants and assurances contained herein. The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE 
also certifies that the undersigned possesses the authority to legally execute and 
bind RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE to the terms of this Agreement. 

Pursuant to the North Carolina Emergency Management Act, N.C.G.S. §166A-
6.0l(b)(2)a.3. (Senate Bil1300); §203 and §322 of the Robert T. Stafford 
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §5121 et seq., as 
amended, §102 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of2000, P.L. 107-73, 115 Stat. 651, 
Department of Veterans Affairs and Housing and Urban Development, and 
Independent Agencies Appropriations Act, 2002; 44 C.F .R. Parts 201 and 206; 
and the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) §83.557 communities 
are eligible to apply for Pre-Disaster Mitigation Project Grants. Communities on 
probation or suspended under 44 C.F.R. Part 60 of the NFIP are not eligible. 

~2) ASSU~CES 

The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall execute and comply with the Statement 
of Assurances incorporated as Attachment D. 

(23) SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

(a) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall comply with the special 
conditions set forth in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated by 
this reference. 

(b) Failure of the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE to comply with the special 
conditions listed in Attachment E or the program statutes and regulations 
in Attachments B and D of this Agreement shall be cause for the 
immediate suspension of payments or the immediate termination of this 
Agreement. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 15 PDMCwPJ-04-NCw2014-001 Craven County 



(24) HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

IfRECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE is a local governmental entity, RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE shall complete and adopt an all-hazards mitigation plan in a 
manner satisfactory to the State Hazard Mitigation Officer within three hundred 
and sixty-five (365) calendar days following execution of this Agreement. The 
all-hazards mitigation plan shall be developed in accordance with the minimum 
criteria for local hazard mitigation plans as determined by the AGENCY I 
GRANTEE. The minimum criteria are incorporated by reference into this 
Agreement as if fully set out herein. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 16 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the AGENCY/GRANTEE and the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE have each executed this 
Agreement, this the day of , 2015. 

CONTRACTING AGENCY 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFET 

-... .._ !:.....,_ 

DEPAR~F PUBLIC SAFETY 
DATE 1ft:" 

r 

BY::{);_#&,,.~ 
DONALD BAUMGARDN 
CRAVEN COUNTY 
PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS DIRECTOR 
FEDERAL EMPLOYER I.D. # 56~6000290 
DATE /4,..JJ-/s-

APPROVED AS TO PROCEDURES: 

BY: ~~ ~-£ 
J MES J. HEROKE, CONTROLLER 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
DA 1'E lb ( 'l{i,-

APPROVED AS TO FORM SUBJECT TO EXECUTION BY GREGORY K. BAKER, COMMISSIONER OF 
OPERATIONS FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. 

ROY COOPER 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NORTH CAROLINA 

BY: ( 
ASS TA 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 17 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



A-1 
ATTACHMENT A 

BUDGET AND SCOPE OF WORK 

RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall implement the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Project 
summarized below and as described in the approved project application PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-
00 1. That Application is hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement. The 
AGENCY/GRANTEE shall reimburse eligible costs according to the following expenditures: 

I. Pre-Disaster Mitigation Funds: 

A. Total Number of Locations- 2 
2 

Total Estimated Project Costs 

Total Costs 
$80,173.00 

$80,173.00 

The total estimated project costs are an estimate only. The final project costs will 
be determined according to the policies and procedures in the applicable North 
Carolina Division of Emergency Management Standard Operating Procedure. 

B. Funding Sources 

1. Estimated Federal Share for PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 
2. Estimated Local Share for PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 
3. Estimated State Share for 
4. Federal Share ofRecipient!Subgrantee 

Administrative Cost for 
5. State Share of Recipient/Subgrantee 

Administrative Cost for 

TOTAL FOR PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 18 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 

$60,129.75 
$20,043.25 

$80,173.00 

Craven County 



A-2 

II. Scope of Work Summary 

PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) grant funding 
will allow Craven County to install storm shutters on the Craven County 
Emergency Operation Center /911 Communication Center and the City of 
New Bern Utilities Operation Center. 

The properties eligible for storm shutters with PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 
grant funds are: 

411 Craven Street, New Bern, NC 28562 
Latitude: 35.10889, Longitude: -77.03819 

3031st Street, Craven, NC 28562 
Latitude: 35.106, Longitude: -77.056 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 19 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



B-1 

ATTACHMENT B 

PROGRAM STATUTES AND REGULATIONS 

This Agreement, the North Carolina Legislature, the Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) and 
the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management as administrators of this Pre-Disaster 
Mitigation Grant are governed by the following statutes, regulations, procedures and policies: 

(1) The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§5121 et. seq.; 

(2) 44 C.F.R. parts 7, 9, 10, 13, 14, 17, 18, 25, 206, 220, 221, 44 C.F.R. Part 209, 
2 C.F .R. Part 200 and any other applicable FEMA policy memoranda and 
guidance documents; 

(3) Chapter I66A of the N.C. General Statutes, N.C.G.S. § 166A-1 et. seq., "The 
N.C. Emergency Management Act"; 

(4) State ofNorth Carolina Administrative Plan and policies and procedures of the 
N.C. Division of Emergency Management; 

( 5) All applicable laws and regulations delineated in Attachments D&E of this 
Agreement; 

( 6) All applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, licensing requirements 
and other regulatory matters that are applicable to the work performance under 
this Agreement, including those of federal, state and local agencies having 
appropriate jurisdiction. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 20 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



ATTACHMENT C 

LOBBYING PROHIBITION 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence either 
directly or indirectly an officer or employee of any state or federal agency, a 
member of the N.C. Legislature, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of 
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-L. "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions. 

(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, 
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that 
all SUB-RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEES shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representative of fact upon which reliance was placed when 
this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person 
who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

Donald Baumgardn 
Craven County 
Planning and Inspections Director 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 21 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



D-1 
ATTACHMENT D 

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES 

The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE hereby assures and certifies that: 

(a) It possesses legal authority to enter into this agreement, and to execute the 
proposed program. 

(b) Its governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, 
motion or similar action authorizing the filing of the HMGP application to PEMA, 
including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and 
authorizing the RECIPIENT/ SUB GRANTEE's chief executive officer to act in 
connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may 
be required. 

(c) No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States, and no Resident 
Commissioner, shall be admitted to any share or part of this agreement or to any 
benefit to arise from the same. No member, officer, or employee of the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE, or its designees or agents, no member of the 
governing body of the locality in which the program is situated, and no other 
public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or 
responsibilities with respect to program during his tenure or for one year thereafter, 
shall have any interest direct or indirect, in any contract or program assisted under 
this agreement. The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall incorporate or cause to be 
incorporated, in all such contracts or subcontracts a provision prohibiting such 
interest pursuant to the purposes stated above. 

(d) It will comply with and conduct audit(s) pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984, 
31 U.S.C. §7501 et. seq., 44 C.P.R. Part 14, OMB Circular A-133 "Audits of 
States, Local Governments and Non-profit Organizations", 2 C.P.R. Part 200 and 
applicable North Carolina laws, rules and regulations. Additionally, the 
RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE shall comply with the requirements related to audits 
and financial management pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984,31 U.S.C. 
§7501 et. seq. and shall provide the documentation discussed below and requested 
under this Agreement. RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE must provide a hard copy of 
the Single Audit Act Report within sixty (60) days of the close of its fiscal year. 
Otherwise, pursuant to 44 C.F.R. § 13.43, the AGENCY/SUBGRANTEE may 
withhold or suspend payments under any grant award. Failure to provide such 
documentation or to comply with said requirements shall terminate any obligation 
on behalf of the AGENCY/ GRANTEE to reimburse the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE for eligible expenses. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 22 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



D-2 

1. The AGENCY /GRANTEE shall review the RECIPIENT I 
SUBGRANTEE's performance periodically to determine whether 
the RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE has substantially completed its 
program as described in the approved Application and this 
Agreement. Training and technical assistance shall be provided by 
the AGENCY /GRANTEE, within limits of staff time and budget, 
upon written request by the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE and/or 
upon a determination by the AGENCY /GRANTEE of RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE need. 

2. The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall allow the AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE to carry out monitoring, evaluation, and technical 
assistance and shall assure the cooperation of its employees, sub
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEES and subcontractors during such 
activities. 

3. In the event that the AGENCY/GRANTEE suspends funding 
pursuant to the provision of this Agreement, said suspension shall 
take effect as of the receipt of the notice of said suspension by the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE. Any requests for payment for which 
the AGENCY/GRANTEE has not yet disbursed payment shall be 
subject to said suspension. 

4. Should the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE fail to enforce the 
provisions of any promissory note, mortgage, security agreement, or 
other obligation specified in any Participating Party Agreement or 
in written contract with a beneficiary, contractor, agent, or sub
RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE who received payment or benefit 
from funds disbursed under this Agreement, the AGENCY/ 
GRANTEE may, with thirty days (30) written notice to the 
RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE, automatically substitute itself for the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE in said Participating Party Agreement 
or written contract for the purpose of enforcing said Participating 
Party Agreement or written contract and may, at its discretion,
continue to administer said Participating Party Agreement or 
written contract. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation· (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 23 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



D-3 

5. The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE's application for funds to the 
State for funding consideration under the FEMA Pre-Disaster 
Mitigation is made a part of this Agreement by reference. 

6. RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE shall establish and maintain a proper 
accounting system to record expenditures of disaster assistance 
funds in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
or as directed by the Governor's Authorized Representative. The 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE, its employees, and agents, shall 
maintain records and supporting documents as prescribed in 44 
CFR Part 13,2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart C "Reports, Records 
Retention and Enforcement" and 9 NCAC Part 3M. These records 
shall be maintained at a readily accessible site within the 
jurisdiction and under the jurisdiction's control. 

7. Program Income is defined in 44 CFR Section 13.25 and 2 C.P.R. 
Part 200. Program Income must be returned to the 
AGENCY/GRANTEE within five (5) days of receipt, to the 
following address: 

Controller 
N.C. Department of Public Safety 
4220 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-4220 

8. All RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE or sub-RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE contracts for which the N.C. Legislature is in any 
part a funding source, shall contain language to provide for 
termination with reasonable costs to be paid by the RECIPIENT I 
SUBGRANTEE for eligible contract work completed prior to the 
date the notice of suspension or termination is received by the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE may not be funded with funds 
provided under this Agreement unless previously approved in 
writing by the AGENCY/GRANTEE. All sub-RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE contracts shall contain provision for termination 
for cause or convenience and shall provide for the method of 
payment in such event. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 24 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



D-4 

9. All amendments requiring prior AGENCY /GRANTEE 
approval must be approved in writing by the AGENCY/ GRANTEE 
prior to the RECIPIENT/ SUBGRANTEE's submission of a 
closeout package. Any closeout package received prior to the 
written approval of said amendment is considered void ab initio, 
and is not considered a closeout package for the purposes of 
eligibility or potential penalty issues related to closeout. 

10. Submission of inaccurate information by the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE in monitoring report responses; audit or audit 
finding responses; quarterly, closeout, program income, or other 
reports; or Requests for Funds that result in subsequent official 
AGENCY/GRANTEE action based on that inaccurate information 
(such as the granting of administrative or final closeout status, 
releasing funds, or clearing findings) may at the option of the 
AGENCY/ GRANTEE, subject the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE 
to revocation of the official AGENCY/GRANTEE action(s) 
predicated on that report or submission, (e.g., revocation of closeout 
status, audit clearance, monitoring report clearance, etc.). 

(e) Where applicable, it will comply with: 

(1) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act of 1962, 40 
U.S.C.327 et seq., requiring that mechanics and laborers (including 
watchmen and guards) employed on federally assisted contracts be 
paid wages of not less than one and one-half times their basic wage 
rates for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in a work week; 
and 

(2) Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 201 et seq., 
requiring that covered employees be paid at least the minimum 
prescribed wage, and also that they be paid one and one-half times 
their basic wage rates for all hours worked in excess of the 
prescribed work-week. 

(3) Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §276a et. s~. 

(4) National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 42U.S.C. §4321; et. 
seq.; EO 115154; EO 11988; Coastal Zone Management Act of 
1972, 16U.S.C. §1451 et. seq.; Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act 
of 1955, 42U.S.C. §7401 et. seq.; Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 25 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



D-5 

42U.S.C. §300f et. seq.; Endangered Species Act of 1973, 16U.S.C. 
§1532 et. seq.; Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, 16U.S.C. 
§ 1271 et. seq. 

(5) Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, 
16U.S.C. §470 et. seq.; E011593; Archaeological and Historic 
Preservation Act of 1974, 16U.S.C. §469a-1 et. seq. 

(f) It will comply with: 

(1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), and the regulations 
issued pursuant thereto, which provides that no person in the United States 
shall on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 
under any program or activity for which the RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE 
receives Federal financial assistance and will immediately take any 
measures necessary to effectuate this assurance. 

(2) If any real property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the 
aid of Federal financial assistance extended to the RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE, this assurance shall obligate the RECIPIENT/ 
SUB GRANTEE, or in the case of any transfer of such property, any 
transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used 
for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended, or for 
another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits; 

(3) Any prohibition against discrimination on the basis of age under the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C.; 6101-6107) which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of age or with respect to otherwise 
qualified handicapped individuals as provided in Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 

(4) Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Orders 11375 and 12086, 
and the regulations issued pursuant thereto, which provide that no person 
shall be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, religion, sex or 
national origin in all phases of employment during the performance of 
federal or federally assisted construction contracts; affirmative action to 
insure fair treatment in employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms 
of compensation; and election for training and apprenticeship. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 26 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



D-6 

(g) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE agrees to comply with the Americans With 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336,42 U.S.C. Section 12101 et~ if 
applicable, which discrimination by public and private entities on the basis of 
disability in the areas of employment, public accommodations, transportation, 
State and local government services, and in telecommunications. 

(h) It will comply with the Anti-kickback (Copeland) Act of 1934, 18 U.S.C. Section 
874 and 40 U.S.C. Section 276a, which outlaws and prescribes penalties for 
"kickbacks" of wages in federally fmanced or assisted construction activities. It 
will comply with the provision of the Hatch Act, which limits the political activity 
of employees. 

(i) It will comply with the provision of the Hatch Act, which limits the political 
activity of employees. 

G) It will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of 
the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 as amended. Pub. L. 93-156, 87 Section 
975, approved December 31, 1973. Section 103(a) required, on and after March 2, 
197 4, the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is 
available as a condition for the receipt of any Federal fmancial assistance for 
construction or acquisition purposes for use in any area, that has been identified by 
the Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development as an area 
having special flood hazards. The phrase "Federal financial assistance" includes 
any form of loan, grant guaranty, insurance payment, rebate, subsidy, disaster 
assistance loan or grant, or any other form of direct or indirect Federal assistance. 

(k) It will require every building or facility (other than a privately owned residential 
structure) designed, constructed, or altered with funds provided under this Part to 
comply with the "uniform Federal Accessibility Standards," (UF AS) which is 
Appendix A to 41 CFR Part 40 for residential structures. The RECIPIENT/ 
SUBGRANTEE will be responsible for conducting inspections to ensure 
compliance with these specifications by the contractor. 

(1) The RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE will comply with applicable N.C. General 
Statutes when negotiating contracts for services. 

(m) It has adopted and is enforcing a policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by 
law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in 
nonviolent civil rights demonstrations, and has adopted and is enforcing a policy of 
enforcing applicable State and federal laws against physically barring entrance or· 
exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 27 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014·001 Craven County 



D-7 

demonstration within its jurisdiction in accordance with section 519 of Public Law 
101-140 of the 1990 HUD Appropriations Act. 

(n) It will comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended 
(20 U.S.C.: 1681-1683 and 1685-1686) which prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of sex; 

(o) It will comply with the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 91-
616) as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; 

(p) It will comply with the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism 
Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism. 

( q) It will comply with 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 "( 42 
U.S.C. 290 dd-3 ~d 290 ee-3)", as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol 
and drug abuse patient records; 

(r) It will comply with Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Act "(42 U.S.C. 4801 et seq.)" 
which prohibits the use of lead based paint in construction of rehabilitation or 
residential structures; 

(s) It will comply with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U.S.C. §6291 et. 
Seq. 

(t) RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE certifies that it: 

(1) Is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal 
court, or voluntarily excluded from participating in Federal or State grants 
or awards by any Federal or State department or agency; and 

(2) Has not within a three-year period preceding this contract been 
convicted of or had a civilian judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation ofF ederal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or 
receiving stolen property; 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 28 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



(3) Is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of 
the offenses enumerated in paragraph (2) above; and, 

( 4) Has not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or 
more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

(u) RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE further agrees that it will include the above 
certifications, without modification, in all lower tier contracts and in all 
solicitations for lower tier contracts. 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 29 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



ATTACHMENT E 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

This agreement shall be executed by the RECIPIENT /SUB GRANTEE, and returned to the 
AGENCY /GRANTEE at the following address: 

Nicholas M. Burk 
Section Manager for Hazard Mitigation Grants 
Department of Public Safety 
NC Division of Emergency Management 
4105 Reedy Creek Road 
Raleigh, NC 27607 

This agreement will be executed within thirty (30) days after receipt All time periods in 
this Agreement refer to calendar days. After receipt by the AGENCY /GRANTEE of the signed 
Agreement, the AGENCY/GRANTEE will execute this Agreement and return an original to the 
RECIPIENT/SUBGRANTEE. 

Donald Baumgardner 
Craven County 
Planning and Community Development Director 
2828 Neuse Blvd. 
New Bern, NC 28560 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program 
Grant Agreement 

Page 30 PDMC-PJ-04-NC-2014-001 Craven County 



AHa.chmeM.JJ. B. 
DJSTRJBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AM.~:NDMENTS 

1. Fund: Reserve/General 

3. Revenue Account Nun1ber(s) 
371-0000-399-01-00 fund balance current 

101 .. 4401-366-07-00 from reserve 

JOURNAL ENTRY 

371-0571-400-97-01 to gen fund 

101-0000-101-00-00 cash 

Total: 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 
fo pay performance grant to MOEN for FY '16 . 

Atnount 
500,000.00 

500,000.00 

500,000.00 

500,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

~ sfo,)tc. 
.p.~~~~-D....;:~=pa=til=--n-et-lt_I_fe_a_d____ 1 riate 

County Con1tnissioners/Chainnan Date 

FINBA -Revised 01 0907 

2. Departn1ent: Economic Development 4t1 0 \ 

4. Expenditure Account Nutnber(s) Atnount 
371-0571400-97~01 transfer to gen fund 5001000.00 

101-4401-430-47-11 perf grant MOEN 500,000.00 

371-0000-101-00-00 cash 500,000.00 

1 01-4401-366-07-00 from reserve 500,000.00 

Total: 2,0001000.00 

County Manager Date 

J oun1al Entry Nutnber Date 



Qh:aum Qtuuntu DISTRIBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

1. Fund: General 
-----------------------------------

2. Department: _s_c_h_oo_ls ____________ _ 

3. Revenue Account Number(s) Amount 4. Expenditure Account Number(s) Amount 
1 01-0000-303-00-00 late listing penalty tax 39,000.00 101-8500-480-37-12 school late list penalty 39,000.00 

Total: 39,000.00 Total: 39,000.00 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 
Receipt of taxes attributable to late listing penalties has already exceeded the $60,000 amount projected for fy '16. Need to budget the 
additional revenue expected and corresponding expenditure to schools. 

Department Head Date County Manager Date 

County Commissioners/Chairman Date Journal Entry Number Date 

FINBA - Revised 010907 



DISTRIBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

1. Fund: General ------------------------------------ 2. Department: _s_c_h_o_ol_s ____________________ _ 

3. Revenue Account Number(s) Amount 4. Expenditure Account Number(s) Amount 
101-0000-309-12-00 state school pilt 14,248.00 101-8500-480-37-02 schools exp pilt 14,248.00 

Total: 14,248.00 Total: 14,248.00 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 
The FY' 16 projected Timber receipts were $50,000 . These funds are passed to Craven County Board of Education as School PIL T. Total 
amount received this year was $64,247.78. Need to budget the additional revenue and corresponding expenditure to schools. 

Department Head Date County Manager Date 

County Commissioners/Chairman Date Journal Entry Number Date 

FINBA - Revised 010907 



LGC-205 (Rev. 2016) 
CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

Craven County 
Of------------------------~~~~----~~~------~----------~-----

Primary Governmental Unit 

Tourism Development Authority; Coastal Regional Airport 
Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) if applicable 

On this __ --:.._1..:_8_th __ -==.:__ day of_-""'-_______ F_e_b_ru_.afY=-"'"""''-'-··· .;....._ __ ..;.> ---. __ 20_1_6 _ __. 

Auditor: RSM US LLP . Auditor Mailing Address:. 3120 Wellons Blvd; l'J~w Bern, NC ~8562 
--~----------~-------------~ 

. Hereinafter referred to as The Auditor 
~~~~-----~----~~~--------------------~~~ 

and Board of Commissioners (Governing Board(s)) O.f Craven County 
·(Primary Government) 

and Tourism Dev.elopmetllj\ut~ority; Coastal Regional Airport :hereinafter referred to as the Governmental Unit(s), agree as follows: 
(Discretely Presented Component Unit) 

1. The Auditor shall audit aiJ statements and disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
and additional required lega1 statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the Governmental Unit (s) 
for the period beginning .... July 1 .· 2015 .· and ending June 30 . . . . . 2.016 • The 
non .. major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion will be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate DPCUs, each ml\ior governmental and enterprise 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-major government and enterprise funds, the internal 
service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types). 

2. At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct his/her audit and render his/her report in accordance with generaHy 
accepted auditing standards. The Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
if required by the State Single Audit Implementation Act, as codified in G.S. 159-34. If required by OMB Circular 
A~l33 Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act, the Auditor shall perform a Single Audit. This audit and aJJ associated workpapers may be 
subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State laws, including the staffs of the 
Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If the audit and/or workpapers are 
found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review may be forwarded to the North Carolina State Board 
of CPA Examiners (NC CPA Board). 

County and Multi-County Health Departments: The Office of State Auditor will designate certain programs that 
have eligibility requirements to be considered major programs in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the State 
of North Carolina. The LGC will notify the auditor and the County and Multi-Health Department of these programs. 
A County or a Multi-County Health Department may be selected to audit any of these programs as major. 

3. If an entity is detennined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit standards- the 
entity's auditor will make a good faith effort to comply in a timeJy manner whh the requests of the group auditor in 
accordance with A U-6 §600.41 - §600.42. 

4. This contract contemplates an unquallfied opinion being rendered. The audit shaH include such tests of the 
accounting records and. such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the 
circumstances. Ally Uniitations gt,t;esttictiorts in scQpe ·Which Would lead to H'guhlificatloO Sh6tdd oe ftdly eXplained. 
in an attachment to this contract. · · · · 

5. If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing Standards, 2011 
revisions, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this engagement, the Auditor 
warrants that he has met the 1·equirements for a peer review and continuing education as specified in Government 



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) Craven County 
Governmental Unit 

Tourism Development Authority; Coastal Regional Airport 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Auditing Standardr;. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy oftheir most recent peer review report regardless of the 
date of the prior peer review report to the Governmental Unit and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of 
the audit contract (See Item 22). If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the Auditor 
shall not contract with the Governmental Unit wjthout first contacting the Secretary of the LOC for a peer review 
analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements. 

lf the audit engagement is not subject to Government Accounting Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with GAAP and fail to include all disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide 
an explanation as to why in an attaclunent.. 

6. It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of audit 
submitted to the State and Local Government Finance Division (SLGFD) within four months of fiscal year end. 
Audit report is due on: Oct(Jber 31 ,, 2016 • If it becomes necessary to amend this due date 
or the audit fee, an amended contract along with a written explanation of the delay must be submitted to the 
secretary of the LGC for approval. 

7. It is agreed that generally accepted auditing standards include a review of the Governmental Unit's systems of 
internal control and accounting as same relate to accot1ntability of funds and adherence to budget and Jaw 
requirements applicable thereto; that the Auditor wiU make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the 
written report of audit, to the Governing Board setting forth his findings, together with his recommendations for 
improvement. That written report must include all matters defmed as "significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses" in AU-C 265 of the AICP A Professional Standards (Clarified). The Auditor shall file a copy of that 
report with the Secretary of the LGC. 

8. All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the approval of the 
Secretary of the LGC. This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures related to internal controls, 
bookkeeping or other assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit's records for audit, financial statement 
preparation, any finance-related investigations, Ol' any other audit-related work in the State of North Carolina. 
Invoice$ 'for;scrvices ~~endcred utl<ler these eoittrac·ts shan ·hot be paid ·by tlie 'Goyer.innenisd Unit until the 
invoice bas been approved by the Seeretarv of the LGC. (This also includes any progress billings.) [G.S. 159-34 
and 1 1 5C-44 7] · AU invoices for Audit work must be submitted by email in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC 
for approval. The invoices must be sent via upload through the current portal address: 
http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net Subject line should read "Invoice- [Unit Name]. The PDF invoice marked 
'approved' with approval date wi11 be returned by email to the Auditor to present to the Governmental Unit for 
payment. Approval is not required on contracts and invoices for system improvements and similar services of a 
non-auditing nature. 

9. Jn consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Primary Governmental Unit 
shall pay to the Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC:o the fee, which includes any cost the Auditor 
may incur fror.n work paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance program requil'ed by third parties (Federal 
and State grantor and oversight agencies or other organizations) as required under the Federal and State Single Audit 
Acts. (Note: Fees listed on signature pages.) 

10. If the Governmental Unit has outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall include documentation either in the notes 
to the audited financial statements or as a separate report submitted to the SLGFD along with the audit report, a 
calculation demonstrating compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor should be 
aware that any other bond compliance statements or additional reports required in the authorizing bond documents 
need to be submitted to the SLGFD simultaneous1y with the Governmental Unit's audited financial statements unless 
otherwise specified in the bond documents. 

Page 2 of8 



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) Craven County 
Governmental Unit 

Tourism DeveiQpment Authority; Coastal Regional Airport 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU).if applicable 

11. After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This report 
shaiJ include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management,s Discussion and Analysis, (b) the 
financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit and all of its component units prepared in accordance with 
GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the client or required for full disclosure under the law, and (d) 
the Auditor's opinion on the 1naterial presented. The Auditor shall furnish the required number of copies of the 
report of audit to the Goveming Board as soon as practical after the close of the accounting period. 

12. If the audit firm is required by the NC CPA Board or the Secretary of the LGC to have a pre" issuance review oftheir 
audit work, there must be a statement added to the engagement letter specifying the pre-issuance review including a 
statement that the Governmental Unit will not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre"issuance review must 
be perfonned prior to the conipleted audit being submitted to the LGC. The pre" issuance report must accompany 
the audit report upon submission to the LGC. · 

13. The Auditor shall electronically submit the report of audit to the LGC as a text~based PDF file when (or prior to) 
submitting the invoice for services rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a 
matter of public record for inspection, review and copy in the offices of the SLGFD by any interested parties. Any 
subsequent revisions to these reports must be sent to the Secretary of the LOC. These audited financial statements, 
excluding the Auditors; opinion, may be used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings, by 
municipal bond rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements ofthe Securities and 
Exchange Conunission and other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit without subsequent consent of the 
Auditor. If it is determined by the LOC that corrections need to be tnade to the Governmental Unit's financial 
statements, they should be provided within three days of notification unless another time frame is agreed to· by the 
LGC. ' 

If the OSA designates certain programs to be audited as 1najor programs, as discussed in item #2, agreed-upon 
procedures report, a turnaround document and a representation letter addressed to the OSA shall be submitted to the 
LOC. 

The LGC's process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors should use the 
submission process in effect at the time of submission. The most current instructions will be found on our website: 
httpsY/www~nctreasurer:comfslfJ/Pages/Audii-Rotms.:fu'id~Rcsources;nspx 

14. Should circumstances disclosed by the audit catJ for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than necessary 
under ordinary circumstances, the Auditor shall infonn the Governing Board in wliting of the need for such 
additional investigation and the additional compensation required.tlierefore. Upon approval by the Secretary ofthe 
LGC, this contract may be varied or changed to include the increased time and/or compensation as may be agreed 
upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor 

15. If an approved contract needs to be varied or changed for any reason, the change must be made in writing, on the 
Amended LGC-205 contract form and pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee. This amended 
conlract needs to be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change, signed and dated by all original 
parties to the contract, and then must be submitted through the audit contract portal to the Secretary of1he LGC for 
approval. The portal address to upload your amended contract is http://nctreasurer.slgfd.Jeapflle.net. No change 
·shall be effective unlessJ!JU>t·ovcd by the Sec•·etal'Y of the LC.rc:11m dovctti1ng,f3oaril .. ru1d the Auditor. 

16. Whenever the Auditor uses an engagement letter with the Governmental Unit~ Item #17 is to be completed by 
referencing the engagement letter and attaching a copy of the engagement letter to the contract to incorporate the 
engagement letter into the contract. In case of conflict between the terms of the engagement Jetter and the terms of 

Page 3 of8 



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) Craven County 
Governmental Unit 

Tourism Development Authority; Coastal Regional Airport 
Discretely Presented Component U:aiits (DPCU) if applicable 

this contract, the tenns of this contract will control. Engagement letter terms are deemed to be void unJess the 
conflicting tenns of this contract are specifically deleted in Item #22 of this contract. Engagement )etters containing 
indemnification clauses will not be approved by the LGC. 

17. Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment. 

Please note, OMB A-133 has been replaced by the Uniform Requirements 
18. A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted~ If a DPCU is 

subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate 
audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued and the DPCU is 
included in the primary government audit, the DPCU must be named along with the parent government on this audit 
contract. Signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and finance officer a1so must be included on this contract. 

19. The contract must be executed, pre-audited, physically signed by all parties including Oovermnental Unit and 
Auditor signatures and submitted in PDF fonnat to the Secretary of the LOC. The current portal address to upload 
your contractual documents is http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.rtet Electronic signatures are not accepted at this 
time. Included with this contract are instructions to submit contracts and invoices for approval as of October 2015. 
These instructions are subject to change. Please check the NC Treasurer's web site at www.nctreasurer.com for the 
most recent instructions. 

20. The contract is not valid until it is approved by the LGC Secretary. The staff of the LGC sbaU notify the 
Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the 
contract is approved. 

21. There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto that shall be 
enforceable unless entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved by the Secretary of the 
LGC. 

22. E~Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements ofNCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor utilizes 
any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of NCGS 
Chapter 64, Article 2. 

23. All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the following numbered 
paragraphs shaH be deleted: (See Item 16 for clarification). 

None 

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW 

Page 4 of8 



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) Craven County 
Governmental Unit 

Tourism Development Authority; Coastal Regional Airport 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Craven County - FEES 
Year-end bookkeeping assistance- [For audits subject to Government Auditing Standards, this is limited to 
hookkeepi11g services permitted by revised Indepe11dence Standards]. N/A 

Audit,._ ____ ___;,;fl.;,..;..u_di_t _-$ __ 6_8_,2_o_o __ ;L_o_c ___ ai __ E_Ii_;...gJ_'b_ill_;...ty_A_U_P_-_$_4_,2 __ o'--o_;...(_if _ap;...;.p--li_ca~·~ ..... le..;,.) _____ ....;.;.. 

Preparation of the annual financial Statements -=-------~--ln....;c;.;.;.lu..;,;.;d....;e-:-d-in_a....;u_d_i-'-t ~...;,.e_e_a_b_o_v_e-:--__ _....;;..__.:., 
Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report, applicable compJiance reports and amended contract (if 
required) the Auditor may submit invoices for approval for services rendered, not to exceed 75% of the total ofthe stated 
fees above. If the current contracted fee is not fixed in total, invoices for services rendered may be approved for up to 
75% of the prior year audit fee. 
The 75% cap for interim invoice app1·oval for thb audit contract is $ 64i~OO 

Communication regarding audit contract requests for 
modlflcation or official approvals will be sent to the 
email adtlresses provided in tile spaces below. 
Audit Firm Signature: 

RSM USLLP 
Name of Audit Firm 

By Lou Ca11non 

=lhori~<d AUau:r.;.:: :: prfut 

Signature of authorized au.tUt firm representative 

Date l-:{ \ 1J 1 ~ 
lou.cannon@r$mu~.com 

Email Address of Audit Firm 

Governmental Unit SignatUres: 
Crav_eo County 

Name of Primary Government 

.By .... · ----"-'---~--~--~---
Mavor I Chairperson: Type Ol' print name and title 

Signature of Mayor/Chairperson of governing board · 

Date _____ -:----,-,--,..,...----,-,---,--

_By. _ N/A 
Chair of Audit Committee..; Type or print name 

Signature of Audit Comnilttoo Cbairptr§on 

Date 

** 

* * lf;;-;G"'"o~v-er_n_m_e_n-:-ta'l-;:Ui,..,-n..,il:-;h,....a-~-n-o_a_ud.,I;;-:.1-co-.,-nm__,ittee, mark 
this section "NIA" 

** N A if there is to be no bderim bJllil1g 

craven countY 
PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE: Required })y G.S.159-28 
(a) 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner 
reqwred by The Local Govenunent Budget and FiscaJ 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act. Additionally) the following date is the date this audit 
contract was approved by the governing body. 

By Craig Warren 
Primarv G.ovemmeiita1 Unit Finance Officer! 
Type or print name 

Primary Government Finance Officer Signature 

Dare~----------~-----------
(J>re-audit Certificate niust be daletl.) 

cwarren@craVeJ1countync.gov . 
Email Address of Finance Officer 

Date Primary Government Governing Body 
Approved Audit Contract- G.S. 159-34(a ) 

Page 5 of8 



February 18, 2016 

County Commissioners 
Jack B. Veit, Ill, County Manager 
Craig Warren, Finance Officer 
Craven County, North Carolina 
New Bern, North Carolina 

Attention: Chairperson 

The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial StateJUents 

... __ _ 
RS~JI 

RSMUSLLP 

3120 Wellons Boulevard 
New Bern, NC 28562-5247 

P.O. Box 15409 
New Bern, NC 28561-5409 

T +1 252 637 5.154 
F +1 252 637 5383 

www.rsmus.com 

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of Craven County, North Carolina's (the 
"County"), governmental activities, business-type c;lctlvities, aggregate discretely presented .component 
units, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund informatipn e.s of and for the year-ended June 30, 
2016 which collectively comprise the basic financial statements. Our audit will include each major fund 
and .aggregate remaining fund information in addition to audits. of the Tourism Development Authority and 
Coastal Carolina Regional Airport Authority and you acknowledge th~t we are the group auqltor. We will 
nofaudit the financial statements of CarolinaEast Health System or Craven County ABC Board. Those 
fin~nclal statements will be audited by other ~uditors. . We are pl.e~sed to confirm our acceptance and our 
understanding of this audit engagement ~Y meahs of this fetter. 

Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial statements. 

We will al~o perform ·the audit of Craven County as of June 30, 2016, so as to satisfy the audit 
r~qulrem~nts imposed by the Single Audit Act an('l Subpart F of Title 2 U~S. Code Federal R~gulations 
(QFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requlrf!ments, Cost Principles, and Audit Requlreml:Jnts for 
Fec!etal Programs (Uniform Guidance), whiob supersede OMB Circular No. A.:.133, and the State Single 
Audit tm·plementatlon Act. 

The Re$ponsibill,i(!$ of the Auditor 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with ii!Udi.tlng s\~pq~rdsg~r]EJraiJy aqcepted In the United -states 
of America (GAAq); Government A~c!iting Standards iss.u~t:t by the Com,pfroller G(3neral of th~ Uf'llted 
State,s ((3A9); th~ provisions of th~ Single J.\4diti\9t, StJ.l;jp~rt F .of .Title. ·2 ,lJ,~. CF~ Part 2QO, Unifotfn 
Acltrilnistr:at/ve Requ.irements, Cost Principles, at).d Audit. Rflglii&.ments (Qt F!Jdeial Award~; ~ng tb~ !).$. 
Office of ManC¥Jeinef1t and Budget'~ OfY-18 CQmpli~n~.~ :$.uP.plernent andihe St?,t~ ?.Ingle AudJ! 
lrnplementatipn A9t. Those smrid~rds, the UnlfQrm Gvldance, s.upplernen.ts~ a'nd Act rf;:ql(ire thatwf! plan 
~ptf perfq_rrn. the audit to obtain reasonable assur~.ope apout whether the 'financial sta.tements are free 
from materi!:il mis~tatement. An audit involves p.eif9rtni.119 proc(3dures to pptaln ~udit evidence aboul the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The proo~q!Jr~s select~g q~pend on the audi.t9r'S 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of ma~eri.al misstatement onn~ fil)ancial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes eval~ating the apptppr{~~~ne~!S of accounting 
policies used and the reason,ableness of significant accounting estimates made by managemE}nt, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD 
AUOIT I TAX I CONSULTING 

RSM USLLP l$lhq U.S. mllffibcr fYm or RS.\IInte;rnaUonnl.ngloiJaln<:tworh oflndcpc:ndent ll!ldit, lax, and CQ(tsultV1g flrt'I\S IJ!sit f$11\Us.t~~m/about:us fl.'l"morc ~lfOml<ltion rcflilnlingRSM US LLP nnd 
RSM lnte.-natil)(lol 



Craven County 
February 18, 2016 
Page2 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors 

. or fraud that are immaterial to the financial statements. The determination of abuse is subjective; 
therefore, GAS does not expect us to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the County's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. However, we will communicate to you In writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified 
during the audit. 

We will also communicate to the county commissioners (a) any fraud involving senior management and 
fraud (whether caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material misstatement 
of the financial statements that becomes known to us during the audit, and (b) any instances of 
noncompliance with laws and regulations that we become aware of during the audit (unless they are 
clearly inconsequential}. 

The funds that you have told us are maintained by the County and that are to be included as part of our 
audit are listed here. 

1. General Fund 
2. Special Revenue Funds 
3. Debt Service Funds 
4. Capital Projects Funds 
5. Enterprise Funds 
6. Internal Service Funds 
7. Fiduciary Funds 

The component units whose financial statements you have told us are to be included as part of the 
County's basic financial statements are listed here. 

8. Tourism Development Authority 
9. Coastal Carolina Regional Airport Authority 
10. CarolinaEast Health System 
11. Craven County ABC Board 

The federal and state financial assistance programs and awards that you have told us that the County 
participates in and that are to be included as part of the single audit are the same ones in the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards for the year ended June 30, 2015 included in the Co~:~nty's 
June 30, 2015 comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR). 



Craven County 
February 18, 2016 
Page3 

Our reports on internal control will include any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
controls of which we become aware as a result of obtaining an understanding of internal control and 
performing tests of internal control consistent with requirements of the standards and circulars identified 
above. Our reports on compliance matters will address material errors, fraud, abuse, violations of 
compliance obligations, and other responsibilities imposed by state and federal statutes and regulations 
or assumed by contracts, and any state or federal grant, entitlement, or Joan program questioned costs of 
which we become aware, consistent with requirements of the standards and circulars identified above. 

The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial Reporting 
Framework 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

2. To evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued or available to be 
issued, and to disclose the date through which subsequent events were evaluated in the financial 
statements. Management also agrees that it will not evaluate subsequent events earlier than the date 
of the management representation letter referred to below. 

3. For the design, implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; 

4. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for informing us 
of all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of such controls of 
which it has knowledge; 

5. For {a) making us aware of srgnlficant vendor relationships where the vendor is responsible for 
program compliance, (b) following up and taking corrective action on audit findings, including the 
preparation of a summary schedule of prior audit findings, and a corrective action plan. and (c) report 
distribution including submitting the reporting package(s); and 

6. To provide us with: 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation, and other matters; 

b. Additionaf information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence: 

d. When applicable, a summary schedule of prior audit findings for Inclusion in the single audit 
reporting package; and 

e. If applfcabfe, responses to any findings reported on the schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 



Craven County 
February 18, 2016 
Page4 

As part of our audit process. we will request from management and when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit 
including among other items: 

1. That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this letter; and 

2. That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are Immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the County complies with the laws and 
regulations applicable to its activities, and for informing us about all known material violations of such 
laws or regulations. In addition, management Is responsible for the design and implementation of 
programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud or abuse, and for informing us about all known or 
suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity involving management, employees who have significant 
roles in internal control, and others where the fraud or abuse could have a material effect on the financial 
statements or compliance. Management is also responsible for informing us of its knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud or abuse or suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity received in communications 
from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the required supplementary information (RSI) and 
suppfementary information presented in relation to the financial statements as a whole In accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management agrees to include 
the auditor's report on the RSI and supplementary information in any document that contains the 
supplementary information and that indicates that the auditor has reported on such RSI and 
supplementary information. Management also agrees to present the supplementary information with the 
audited financial statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with audited 
financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the Intended users of 
the supplementary Information no later than the date of issuance of the supplementary information and 
the auditor's report thereon. 

The county commissioners are responsible for informing us of fts views about the risks of fraud or abuse 
within the entity, and its knowledge of any fraud or abuse or suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity. 

Craven County agrees that it will not associate us with any public or private securities offering Without first 
obtaining our consent Therefore, Craven County agrees to contact us before it includes our reports or 
otherwise makes reference to us, in any public or private securities offering. 

Our association with an official statement is a matter for which separate arrangements will be necessary. 
Craven County agrees to provide us with printer's proofs or masters of such offering documents for our 
review and approval before printing and with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval 
before it is distributed. In the eveht our auditor/client relationship has been terminated when Craven 
County seeks such consent, we will be under no obligation to grant such consent or approvaL 

We agree that our association with any proposed offering is not necessary,·providing Craven County 
agrees to clearly indicate that we are not associated with the contents of any such official statement or 
memorandum. Craven County agrees that the following disclosure will be prominently displayed in any 
such official statement or memorandum: 



Craven County 
February 18,2016 
PageS 

RSM US LLP, our Independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform, and has not performed, 
since the date of its report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in 
that report. RSM US LLP, aJso has not performed any procedures relating to this official statement or 
memorandum. 

Records and Assistance 
If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the County's records, the availability of appropriate audit 
evidence, or indications of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements because 
of error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment, 
prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any 
course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion, issue a 
report, or withdraw from the engagement. 

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should be 
reflected in the County's books and records. The County will determine that aU such data, if necessary, 
will be so reflected. Accordingly, the County will not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our 
possession. 

The assistance to be supplied by County personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analyses 
of accounts, has been discussed and coordinated with Craig Warren, Finance Officer. The timely and 
accurate completion of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of 
our audit report. 

In connection with out audit, you have requested us to petform certain non-audit services necessary for 
the preparation of the financial statements, InclUding the preparation of the draft financial statements that 
are based on management's chart of accounts and trial balance and any adjusting, correcting, and 
closing entries that has been approved by management and assisting In the preparation of draft notes to 
the financial statements based on information provided by and approved by management. The GAS 
require that the auditor maintain independence so that opinions, findings, conclusions, judgments, and 
recommendations will be Impartial and viewed as Impartial by reasonable and informed third parties. 
Before we agree to provide a non-audit service to Craven County, we determine whether providing such a 
service would create a significant threat to our independence for GAS audit purposes, either by itself or in 
aggregate with other non-audit services provided. A critical component of our determination is 
consideration of management's ability to effectively oversee the non-audit service to be performed. 
Craven County has agreed that Craig Warren, Finance Officer possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or 
experience and that the individual understands the preparation of the draft financial statements and notes 
to the financial statementS ser.vJces to be performed sufficiently to oversee them. Accordingly, the 
management of Craven County agrees to the following: 

1. Craven County has designated Craig Warren, Finance Officer as a senior member of management, 
who possesses suitable skfll, knowledge, and experience to oversee the services; 

2. Craig Warren, Finance Officer will assume all management responsibilities for subject matter and 
scope of the drafting of the financial statements and related notes; 

3. Craven County wilf evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and 

4. Craven County accepts responsibility for the results and ultimate use of the services. 



Craven County 
February 18, 2016 
Page6 

GAS further requires we establish an understanding with the County's management and those charged 
with governance of the objectives of the non-audit service, the services to be performed, the entity's 
acceptance of its responsibilities, the auditor's responsibilities, and any limitations of the non~audit 
service. We believe this Jetter documents that understanding. 

Other Relevant Information 
RSM US LLP may mention Craven County's name and provide a general description of the engagement 
in RSM US LLP's client lists and marking materials. 

From time to time and depending upon the circumstances, we may use third-party service providers to 
assist us in providing professional services to you. In such circumstances, it may be necessary for us to 
disclose confidential client information to them. We enter into confidentiality agreements with all third" 
party service providers and we are satisfied that they have appropriate procedures In place to prevent the 
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. 

In accordance with GAS, a copy of our most recent peer review report and applicable letter of comment is 
enclosed, for your information. 

Fees, Costs, and Access to Workpapers 
Our fees for the audit and accounting services described above are based upon the value of the services 
performed and the time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement, plus direct expenses. 
Our fee for the services described in this letter will not exceed $68,200. Our fee estimate and completion 
of our work is based upon the following criteria: 

1. Anticipated cooperation from County personnel 

2. Timely responses to our inquiries 

3. Timely completion and delivery of client assistance requests 

4. Timely communication of all significant accounting and financial reporting matters 

5. The assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement 

If any of the aforementioned criteria are not met, then fees may increase. rnterlm billings will be 
submitted as work progresses and as expenses are incurred. Billings are due upon submission. 

Our professional standards require that we petform certain additional procedures, on current and 
previous years' engagements, whenever a partner or professional employee leaves the firm and is 
subsequently employed by or associated with a client in a key position. Accordingly, the County agrees it 
will compensate RSM US LLP for any additional costs incurred as a result of the County's employment of 
a partner or professional employee of RSM US LLP. 

In the event we are requested or authorized by Craven County or are required by government regulation, 
subpoena, or other legal process to produce our documents or our personnel as witnesses with respect to 
our engagement for Craven County, Craven County will, so long as we are not a party to the proceeding 
ln which the information is sought, reimburse us for our professional time and expenses, as well as the 
fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in responding to such requests. 



Craven County 
February 18, 2016 
Page 7 

The documentation for this engagement is the property of RSM US LLP. However, you acknowledge and 
grant your assent that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their designee, other 
government audit staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have access to the audit 
documentation upon their request and that we shall maintain the audit documentation for a period of at 
least three years after the date of the report, or for a longer period if we are requested to do so by the 
cognizant or oversight agency. Access to requested documentation will be provided under the supervision 
of RSM US LLP audit personnel and at a location designated by our Firm. 

You have informed us that you intend to prepare a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) and 
submit it for evaluation by the Government Finance Officers Association's Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting. Our association with the CAFR is to consist of having the report 
reviewed by a person who has also performed reviews for the GFOA Certificate Program and have him 
involved in the resolution of any accounting or reporting Issues that arise from this engagement. 

Reporting 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Craven County's financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the county commissioners of Craven County. We cannot provide assurance 
that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in Which it is necessary for us to 
modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other .. matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the 
engagement. 

In addition to our report on Craven County's financial statements, we wlll also issue the following types of 
reports: 

1. A report on the fairness of the presentation of Craven County's schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards for the year ending June 30, 2016; 

2. Reports on internal control related to the financial statements and major programs. These reports 
• will describe the scope of testing of internal control and the results of our tests of internal controls; 

3. Reports on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements. 
We will report on any noncompliance which could have a material effect on the financial statements 
and any noncompliance which could have a material effect, as defined by OMB Circular No. A-133, 
on each major program; and 

4. An accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

This letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between RSM US LLP and 
Craven County, superseding all proposals, oral or written, and alf other communications, with respeot to 
the terms of the engagement between the parties. 



Craven County 
February 18, 2016 
PageS 

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and 
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements including our respective 
responsibilities. 

RSMUSLLP 

w.~~ 
W. Louis Cannon, CPA 
Partner 

Confirmed on behalf of Craven County, North Carolina: 

Chairperson 

County Managet 

Finance ·officer 

Date 

Date 

Date 



,I 

March 15, 2016 

Board of County Commissioners 
Jack B. Veit, Ill, County Manager 
Craig Warren, Finance Director 
Craven County, North Carolina 
New Bern, North Carolina 

Attention: Chairperson 

...... 
RS~JI 

RSMUSLLP 

3120 Wellons Boulevard 
New Bern, NC 28562-5247 

P.O. Box 15409 
New Bern, NC 28561-5409 

T +1 252 637 5154 
F +1 252 637 5383 

www.rsmus.com 

This letter is to explain our understanding of the arrangements regarding our engagement to examine 
Craven County, North Carolina's (the County) assertion that the census data being provided by 
employers via ORBIT into the Local Government Employees' Retirement System {LGERS) is materially 
correct for the year ended December 31. 2015, in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We ask that you corltirm this understanding. 

Engagement Services 

We will perform an examination of the County's census data being provided by employers via ORBIT in 
relation to established or stated criteria. Accordingly, we will perform such procedures as we consider 
necessary to evaluate the census data being provided by employers via ORBIT in relation to the 
established or stated criteria for the purpose of expressing positive assurance on the County's census 
data being provided by employers via ORBIT Into the LGERS is materially correct.. 

The seNices that we will perform are not designed and cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or 
illegal acts, should any exist. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any 
material errors that come to our attention and any fraud or illegal acts that come to our attention, unless 
they are clearly inconsequential. 

Furthermore, the services were not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, we will communicate to management and the 
board of county commissioners any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that become known 
to us during the course of the engagement. 

Craven County's Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for the census data being provided by employers via ORBIT into the LGERS. 
Management is responsible for providing us with a written management representation letter confirming 
certain representations made during the course of the engagement. Management is responsible for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the census data being provided by employers via ORBIT into LGERS is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD 
AUDIT I TAX I CONSULTING 

RSM US LlP Is the U.S. rnMlller firm of RSM lntemutlonill, a global network of Independent audit, tax, and c:unsu!t~ firms V.sit rsmlls.c:om/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LlP and 
RSM International 



Board of County Commissioners 
Craven County, North Carolina 
March 15, 2016 
Page3 

From time to time and depending upon the circumstances, we may use third--party service providers to 
assist us in providing professional services to you. In such circumstances, it may be necessary for us to 
disclose confidential client information to them. We enter into confidentiality agreements with all third
party service providers and we are satisfied that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the 
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. 

Our professional standards require that we perform certain additional procedures on current and previous 
years' engagements whenever a partner or professional employee leaves the firm and is subsequently 
employed by or associated with a client. Accordingly, the Company agrees it will compensate RSM US 
LLP for any additional costs incurred as a result of the Company's employment of a partner or 
professional employee of RSM US LLP. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our examination of the census data being provided by 
employers via ORBIT into LGERS in relation to established or stated criteria. Our report will be addressed 
to the board of county commissioners of Craven County. We cannot guarantee that positive assurance on 
the census data being provided by employers via ORBIT into LGERS will be expressed. Circumstances 
may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter 
paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 

This letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between RSM US LLP and 
Craven County, superseding all proposals, oral or written, and all other communications, with respect to 
the terms of the engagement between the parties. 

If this letter defines the arrangements as the Company understands them, please sign and date the 
enclosed copy and return it to us. We appreciate your business. 

RSM US LLP, 

\ ... j) ~ vv.~ 

W.louis Cannon, CPA 
Partner 

Confirmed on behalf of the addressee: 

Chairperson 

County Manager 

Finance Director 

Date 

Date 

Date 



RESOLUTION 
619 Second Avenue, New Bern, North Carolina 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County and the City of New Bern have received an offer to 

purchase a parcel of property owned by the County and City identified as 619 Second Avenue, 

and being more particularly described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County's interest in the 

property pursuant to North Carolina General Statute §160A-269; and 

WHEREAS, the offer to purchase was advertised as required by said statute; and 

WHEREAS, the final offer to purchase was in the sum of $6,350.00 by Jesse L. Mars, 

Sr., after multiple upset bids; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners deems it advisable and in the best interest of 

the County to sell its interest in the subject property to the successful bidder and to convey its 

interest in said property by quitclaim deed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

Section 1. That the last and highest bid of Jesse L. Mars, Sr., in the sum of$6,350.00 

for said parcel identified as 619 Second Avenue, and being more particularly described herein, 

be and the same is hereby accepted as to the County's interest in said property, and the 

Chairman, County Manager and/or Clerk be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute a quitclaim deed to the purchasers for the County's interest in said property. 

Section 2. That a copy of said quitclaim deed is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference, and the original deed shall be delivered to said purchasers once the same has 

been executed on behalf of the County and City, upon payment of the purchase price. 

Section 3. That the subject property is more particularly described as follows: 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) 
Township, Craven County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

All of that certain property more fully described in Deed Book 3186 at Page 391 in the 
Craven County Registry. This property is also commonly referred to by its tax parcel 
identification number which is 8-012-148. 

Page 1 of2 



ADOPTED TillS 18st DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

GEORGE LINER, Chairman 

9\\\SERVER04\lssdocs\00000034\00068647.000.DOCX 

Page 2 of2 



Prepared by and return to: 

Micilcwl Scott Pavis 
DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHT PLLC 
209 Pollock Street 
New Bern, NC 28560 

Tax P~c~l # 8-012-148 
Revenue Stamps $().00 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN QUITCLAIM DEED 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED, made this 12th day ofAprll, 2016, by and between the CITY 

OF NEW BERN, a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina, and CRAVEN 

COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina ("Grantors'~); to JESSE L. 

MARS, SR.~ whose mailing address is ________ -----------· 

(''Grantee~:;); 

WITNESSETH; 

That ~aid Grantors fot and in consideration of the sum ofTEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and 

other good ·and valuable consideration to Grantors paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is 

hereby acknowledged, have remised and released, and by ·these presents do remise;. relea$e and 

forever quitclaim unto the Gra;ntee, Grantee's heirs and assigns, the following described property, to 

wit: 

SEE EXHIBIT A ATI'ACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY 
REFERENCE. 

The property herein conveyed does not biclwi¢ the.ptint,ary residence of a Grantor. 

DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHT PLLC 
Attorneys at La.w 
209 Pollock Street 

New :fjern, NC ~8560 



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD .the above described lot or parcel of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to the Grantees~ Grantee's heirs and assigns, free· and discharged 

from all right, title, claim or irttetest of the said Grantors or anyone claiming by, through or under 

the Grantors. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF; the CITY OF NEW BERN has caused this instrument to 

be executed as its act and deed by it$ Mayor, attested by its Deputy City Clerk, and its seal to be 

h~reunto affixed, all by the authority of its Board of Ald~rtnen, and CRAVEN COUNTY has 

caused this instrument to be executed as its act (,Uld deed by the Chairman of its Board ·of 

Co:mmissioners, attested by its Clerk, and its seal to be hereunto affixed, all by the authority of its 

Board of Commissioners, as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF NEW BERN 
(SEAL) 

By: _______ ,--____ _ 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Depucy City Cletk 

Page2 of5 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY bF CRAVEN 

I, , Notary Public in and fot said County and State; do 
hereby certify that on the __ day of April~ 2016, before me personally appeared DANA B. 
OUTLAW, with whom I am persomilly acquaint~, who, being by 111e duiy sworn, says that he is 
the ·Mayor and that BRENDA :BLANe() is the Deputy City Clerk for the City of New Bern, the 
municipal corporation described in and whlch executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows the 
c01nmon sei;ll of said municipal cmporation; that the se&l affixed to the foregoing instrument is said 
common seal; that the 11ame O.f the muni¢ipal corporation was subscribed thereto by the said Mayor; 
that the said comnion seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Aldermen of said municipal 
corporation; and that the said mstru:tnent is the act and deed of said municipal corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day :of April, 2016. 

Notary ·Public 

My Commission Expires: 

Page 3 ofS 



(SEAL) 

AITEST: 

(;Ierk; Craven County Board of 
Conunissioners 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: __ ~--~--------------~----
Chaftrn~ Craven County Board of 
Commissioners 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and State, do 
hereby c.ert1fy that ori the __ day of , 2016, before me personally appeared 
GEORGE S. LINER, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly swoln, says 
that he is the Chainnan of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that 
GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN 1s the Clerk of the Board of ·Commissioners for C:ra.ven County, the 
body politic and corporate described in and which e~ecuted the foregoing instrument; that he knows 
the common seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affrx¥cfto the ·foregoing inst:rum.ent 
is said common seal; that the name of"the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the 
said Chairman; that the said common seal was affixed; all by order of the Board .of Commissioners 
of said body politic and corpora,te; and that the said instrument ·is the act and deed of said body 
politic and corporate. 

WITNESS my h.and and official seal this the __ day of~---' 2016. 

Notary Public 
.My Commission Expires~ 

Page4 ofS 



EXHffiiTA 

All that cert~m lot or parcel of land lying and beiqg situate in NU111ber Eight (8) Township, Craven 
County> North Carolina, and being more particularly described as fo.llows: 

In the City ()fNew Belli, Craven County, North Carolina in that Ceii:~in ponion of said City known 
ctS West End and known as house aJJd LQt Number 73 located on Second Avenue, according to the 
plan of said West E:nd duly recorded in Book 1 $7, Page 3, to whlcli reference is hereby made for a 
tnore particular description. 

Being also that Sl:J.llle property conveyed to Craven County and the City of New Bern by 
Cotnn1issioner's Deed recorded. April 16,2013 in Book 3186 ·at Page 391 of the Craven County 
Registry. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 

Page 5 of5 



OWNER AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
(NO RECENT IMPROVEMENTS AND NO EXECUTORY CONTRACTS FOR IMPROVEMENTS) 

PARTIES: All parties identified in this section must execute this Agreement. 

Owner: CRAVEN COUNTY. a body politic and corporate 
(NOTE: A separate Agreement 15 required tor each successive owner in the 120-Day lien Period.) 

PROPERTY; See "EXHIBIT A" attached heretoa·nd lncorpora[ed herein by reference 
(Insert stre~t address or brlef description and/or attach a description as Exhlblt A. Include here any real estate that is a portion of a larger, pr~ 

unsegregated tract when that area is reasonably necessary for the conveoienl use and occupalion of Improvements on the larger lract.) 

DEFINITIONS: The following capitali4ed terms as used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings: 
• Improvement All or any part of any building, structure, erection, alteration;demolition, excavation, clearing, grading, fillin·g, or landscaping, including tr£ 

shrubbery, driveways, and private roadways.on the Property as defined below. 
• labor. Services or Materials: ALL labor, servic~s, materials for which a lien can be claimed under NCGS Chapter 44A, Article 2, inc-luding but not Iii 

professlof1al design services (including architectural, ef}gineering, landscaping and suNeying) and/or rental equipment. 
• Contr8ctor:- Any person or entity who has performed or furnished or has contracted to perform or furnish Labor, Services or Materials pursuant to a c 

~lther express or implied, with the Owner of real property for the making of an Improvement thereon. (Note that services by architects, en! 
landscapers, surv!:!yors, furnishers of rental equipment and contracts for construction on Property of Improvements are often provided before there i~ 
eviiJ~n~e of cpnstructio~.) 

• 120-Day Lien Period: . The 120 days Immediately preceding the date of recordation of the latter of the deed to purchaser or deed of trust to lender in th• 
of the Register ofDeeds of the county in which the Property is located. 

" Owner: Any person or entity, as defi~ed in NCGS Chapter 44A, Article 2; who has or has had any interest in the Property within the 120-Day Lien Perir 
the purpos~·s of this Agreement, the term Owner includes: (i) a seller of the Property or a borrower under ~ loan agreementsecured by the Proper 

. person with rights to purchase the Property under a contract and for whom an lmpr()vement is made and who ordered the Improvement to be mar 
QiQ th~ Owner's successors in interest and agents ofthe Owner acting within their authority. 

• . Company: The title insurance compqoy providing the title policy for the transaction contemplated by the parties herein. 
• Property: The real estate described above or on Exhibit A and a~y leaseholds, tenements, hereditaments, and improvements placed thereon. 
• All defined terms shall include the singular or plural as required by context. 

AGREEMENT: For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and as an inducement to the purchas1 
Property by a purchaser and/or the making of a loan by a lender secured by· a deed o.f trust eiu;:i.imbering the Property and the issuance of a title insurance p 
policies by Company insuring title to the Property without exception to liens for Labor, Services or Materials; Owner first being duly sworn, deposes, says and i 

t Certifications: Owner certifies that at no time during the 120-Day lien Period have any Labor; Services or Materials been furnished in connectic 
contract, express or implied, for Improvements to the Property {including arcliifectu·rai, engineering, landscaping or surveying services or materials or rental er 
for which a liencan be claimed under NCGSGhapter 44A) nor have any Labor, Services or Materials been furnished on the Property prior to the 120-Day Lie 
that will or may be completed after the date of this affidavitoR only minor repairs and/or alterations to pre-existing Improvements have been made and Owne1 

'Wch repairs and/or alterations have been completed and those providing Labor, Services or Materials for the repairs have been paid in full. The Owne 
certifies that no Mechanics lien Agent has been appointed. 

2~ Reliance. and Indemnification: This Agreement may be relied upon by the purchaser in the pur~hase ofthe Property, a lender to make a loan sect 
de~d of trust en,cumbering the Property anp by Company in issuance of a title insurance pplicy qrpoiiCies insuring title to the Property without exception'!< 
vertifie(! in thls Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the disbursement of funds and closing of this transaction and shall be binding upo 
and anyone claiming by, through or under Owner; 

Owner agrees to indemnify and Mid purchaser-, lender, and Company harmless of and from apy and all loss, cost. damage and expense of every kind, and au 
(~e~, tos!s and expenses. wfilch the purchaser, leqder or Company shall or may :;ncut or become liable for, directly or indirecUy, as a result of reliance 
certifications of Owner made herein or in enforcement of the Company's rights hereunder. 

3. . NCLTA Copyright and Entlre Agreement: This Agreement and any attachments hereto represent the entire agreement between the Owner-and the C 
and no prior or contemporaneous agreement or understanding inconsistent herewith {whethetorar or written) pertainmg to such matters is effeetive. 
THIS IS A COPYRIGHT FORM and any variances in the form provisions hereof must be specifically stated in the blank below and agreed to in writing 
Company. · 

No modification of this Agreement, and no waiver of any of its terms or conditions, shall be effective unless made in writing and approved by the Company. 

CRAVEN. COUNTY, a body politic and corporate State oi NORTH. CAROLINA County of CRAVEN 
Signed and sworn 1o (or affinned) before me this day I!Y 

i 
~~~-------~~~------------~Of ~ Craven County a body ooli~c and rorporate. 2 

I 
Sy: ____ ~----------

Printed or Typed Name!Title:..,.._ __ ~-~--~-

(Seai) 
Date: __________ _ ! 

~------------------'Notary Public 

My 9>inmission Expires: 



EXHIBIT A 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) Township, Craven 
County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as follows: 

In the City of New Bern, Craven County, No$ Carolina in that certain portion of said City known 
as ·west End ap.d known as house and Lot Number 73 located on Second Avenue~ accor<lillg to the 
plan of said West End dilly recorded ill Book 187, Page 3; to which reference is hereby made for a 
more particul~ description. 

Being also that same property conveyed to Craven County and the City of New Bern by 
Commissioner's Deed recorded April 16, 2013 in Book 3186 at Page .391 ofthe Craven County 
Registry. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 



RESOLUTION 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County has received an offer to purchase a parcel of property 
owned by it identified as Tax Parcel Number 1-054-8002, and more particularly described in 
Deed Book 3417 at Page 106 in the Craven County Registry (hereinafter the ''Real Property"), a 
copy of said offer is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County's interest in the 
property pursuant to the provisions ofNorth Carolina General Statute §160A-269. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

1. That the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the initiation of the upset bid 
process for the Real Property by advertising notice of the offer to purchase in accordance with 
the provisions ofNorth Carolina General Statue §160A-269. 

2. That the County Manager, Clerk and/or Attorney are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution. 

ADOPTED TillS 18m DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

GEORGE LINER, Chairman 

9\\\SERVER04\LSSDOCS\00000034\00068645.000.DOCX 



NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 
OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT 

RANDALL MANNING, as Buyer, hereby offers to purchase and CRA YEN COUNTY, as Seller, upon 
acceptance of said offer, agrees to sen and convey, all of that plot, piece or parcel of land described below 
(hereafter referred to as the "Property"), upon the following tenns and conditions: 

1. REAL PROPERTY: Located in ToWnship I, Craven County, North Carolina, being known as and more 
particularly described as: 
Street Address: 329 Nelson Road, Vanceboro, NC 28586 
Subdivision Name: nla 
Tax ParcellD No.: 1-054-8002 
Plat Reference: n/a 
Being ali of that property more particularly described in Deed Book 3417, Page 106 in the Craven County 
Registry. 
2. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price is $3,057.65 and shall be paid as follows: 
(a) $500.00 EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT with this offer by cash bank check certified check other: 

N/ A to be held by Seller until the sale is closed, at which time it will be credited to Buyer, or until this· 
contract is otherwise properly tenninated In the event this offer is not accepted, then all earnest monies 
shall be refunded to Buyer. In the event ofbreach of this contract by Seller, all earnest monies shall be 
refunded to Buyer upon Buyer's request. In the event of breach of this contract by Buyer, then all 
earnest monies shall be forfeited to Seller upon Seller's request, but such forfeiture shaU not affect any 
other remedies available to Seller for such breach. 

(b) $2,557.65 BALANCE of the purchase price in cash or readily available funds at Closing. 
3. CONDITIONS: 
(a) This contract is not subject to Buyer obtaining financing. 
(b) The Property must be in substantially the same or better condition at Closing as on the date of this 

offer, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 
(c) The Property is being sold subject to al1liens and encumbrances of record, if any. 
(d) Other than as provided herein, the Property is being conveyed "as is". 
(e) This contract is subject to the provisions of G.S. § 160A-269. Buyer acknowledges that this contract is 

subject to certain notice provisions and the rights in others to submit upset bids in accordance 
therewith. 

(t) Title shall be delivered at Closing by QUITCLAIM DEED 
4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: Seller makes no warranty or representation as to any pending or 
confinned governmental special assessments for sidewalk, paving, water, sewer, or other improvements on 
or adjoining the Property, or pending or confirmed owners' association special assessments. Buyer shall 
take title subject to all pending assessments, if any. 
5. PAYMENT OF TAXES: Any Ad valorem taxes to which the Property is subject shall be paid in their 
entirety by Buyer. 
6. EXPENSES: Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to any title search, title insurance, 
recording of the deed, its legal fees, and for preparation and recording of all instruments required to secure 
the balance of the purchase price unpaid at Closing. Seller shall pay for preparation of a deed and all ·other 
documents necessary to perform Seller's obligations under this agreement, and for any excise tax (revenue 
stamps) required by law. 
7. EVIDENCE OF TITLE: Not Applicable. 
8. CLOSING: Closing shall be defined as the date and time of recording of the deed. All parties agree to 
execute any and all documents and papers necessary in connection with Closing and transfer of title on or 
before thirty (3C)) days after final aoproval is given by the Craven County Board of Commissioners 
pursuant to G.S. §l60A-269. 
The d~ed is to be made to: RANDALL MANNING or assign(s). 
CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY. IN ITS THEN 
EXISTiNG CONDITION. 

1 



9. POSSESSION: Unless otherwise provided herein, possession shall be delivered at Closing. 
10. PROPERTY INSPECTION, APPRAISAL, INVESTIGATION: 
(a) This contract is not subject to inspection, appraisal or investigation, as the Property is being bought "as 
is". Seller makes no representation as to water, sewer, conditions, title, access, or fitness for any intended 
use. 
(b) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN 
EXISTING CONDITION. 
11. RIGHT OF ENTRY, RESTORATION AND INDEMNITY: Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors 
shall not have the right to enter upon the ·Property for any purpose without advance written pennission of the 
Seller. If such pennission is given, Buyer wiU indemnifY and hold Seller harmless from al1 loss, damage, 
claims, suits or costs, which shall arise out of any contract, agreement, or injwy to any person or property as a 
result of any activities of Buyer and auyer's agents and contractors relating to the Property. This indemnity 
shaiJ survive this contract and any tennination hereof. 
12. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS: (ITEMIZE ALL ADDENDA TO THIS CONTRACT 
AND ATTACH HERETO.): None. 

Buyer Initials Jf?;?J ___ Sel1er Initials __ _ 

Page 1 of2 

2 



13. RISK OF LOSS: The risk of loss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon 
Seller. 
14. ASSIGNMENTS: This contract may not be assigned without the written consent of all parties, but if 
assigned by agreement, then this contract shall be binding on the assignee and the assignee's heirs, 
successors or assigns (as the case may be). 
15. PARTIES: This contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, i.e., Buyer 
and SeHer and their heirs, successors and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the plural 
and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter genders, as appropriate. 
16. SURVIVAL: If any provision herein contained which by its nature and effect is required to be 
observed, kept or performed after the Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remain binding upon and for 
the benefit ofthe.parties hereto until fully observed, kept or performed. 
17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no 
representations, inducements or other provisions other than those expressed herein. All changes, additions 
or deletions hereto must be in writing and signed by all parties. 
18. NOTICE AND EXECUTION: Any notice or communication to be given to a party herein may be 
given to the party or to such party's agent. This offer shall become a binding contract (the "Effective 
Date") when signed by both Buyer and Seller and such signing is communicated to the offering party. This 
contract is executed under seal in signed multiple originals, all of which together constitute one and the 
same instrument, with a signed original being retained by each party, and the parties adopt the word 
"SEAL" beside their signatures below. 

BUYER: 

~ (SEAL) 

~ ~~ " (SEAL) 

RAZz~/ Name: 

Date: !I-/1-Lt 

Address:331 Nelson Road 

Vanceboro, NC28586 

Phone No.: 252-229-0827 

3 

SELLER 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

Date: 



Buyer Initials _&/__ 
Page2 of2 

9\\\SERVER04\lssdocs\00000034\00068555.000.DOCX 

4 

___ Seller Initials __ _ 



st~TEEMPLoYE'Es'cREDITUNION CASHIER'S CHECK 
:. jj(}(j~4 New Bern - Glenburnie Rolld 

; ·~ . 
,t":: 

,:·;;f{~ 
P.'A'¥"~ 

~~~for CRAVEN COUNTY 

:i.~;~~ 
~,:·· 

:~J~t FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS AND 00 CENTS 
... . :.~;$~ 
•\:hf;:TJ.: 

~~}11 

Rffif:h-rrER: RANDAL D MANNJNG 
:·:..;~l~'(~r: 

I 
~::~MO: 
; ~·:~·::::.~~ 

.•:.. 

~~+:(i u•  • •:     n• 

I_.. 't!!~i 

028692 

DATE: Aprilll, 2016 
66-77041253 I 

$********500.00 

~ 
c: 
0 .. 
~ 
0 

{TI 
.,; 
~ 
~ 
,5; .. 
I! 

~ 
f 
CJ) 

l 
l ___ j 



Craven County Geographic Information System 
Craven County does NOT warrant the Information shown on this page and should be used ONLY for tax assessment purposes. 

This report was created by Craven County GIS reporting services on 4/7/2016 11:44:45 AM 

ParceiiD: 

Owner: 

Mailing Address : 

Property Address : 

Description : 

Lot Description : 

1-054 -8002 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

406 CRAVEN ST NEW BERN NC 28560 

329 NELSON RD 

PINEY NECK L T 5 

146.24 X 113.06 IRR 

Assessed Acreage: 0.449 Calculated Acreage : 0.450 

Deed R~ference: 3417-0106 Recorded Date : 2 19 2016 

Recorded Survey : 

Estate Number: 

Land Value : $13,500 

Improvement Valu.e : $56,760 

Total Value : $70,260 

Tax Exempt : No 

# of Improvements : 

City Name: Fire tax District : TOWNSHIP 1 

Drainage District: Special District : 

Land use: RES - MFG HOME AS REAL PROP 

Recent Sales Information 

SALE DATE Sellers Name Buyers Name Sale Type Sale Price 

2/19/2016 LOWE, RUBY H & LOWE CRAVEN COUNTY 
SANDY ELIZABETH 

2/13/2003 ANDERSON, CLAYTON L LOWE, RUBY H & LOWE 
& ELEANOR INEZ SANDY ELIZABETH 

Type of Structure 

List of Improvements to Site 

Year Built 

MANUFACTURED HOME- MUL Tl UNIT 2004 

STRAIGHT $3,500 
TRANSFER 

PROPERTY $2,000 
SPLIT 

Base Area 1st Floor Value 

1344 $56,760 



Page1 of-t 

NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

Revenue Stamps: $7.00 
Parcel # 1-054-8002 

II~IIIIIDIIIIIIIIIWI 
ImaRt ID: 0000021531989 Type: CRP 
Recorded: 02/19/2018 at 02:09:55 PM 
Fee Amt: $33.00 Page 1 of 4 
Revenue Tax: $7.00 
\lorkflowN 0000149702-000t 

~~!~~~·a~JUchard Register of Oeeds 

BK3417 Pa106 

COMMISSIONER'S DEED 

THIS COMMISSIONER'S DEED, made and executed this 18th day of February, 2016, 

by and between AARON D. ARNETIE, Commissioner, pursuant to a judgment of the District 

Court of the N.C. General Court of Justice in Craven County, North Carolina in an action entitled 

"Craven County, Plaintiff v. Ruby H. Lowe, eta/. (File No. 15 CVD 1274), Grantor, to Craven 

County, whose mailing addresses is 406 Craven Street, New Bern, North Carolina 28560, as 

Grantee. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, said Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, being empowered and directed by a 

judgment in the said action, did, on the 4th day of February, 2016, after due advertisement according 

to law, and as directed by said judgment, expose the land hereinafter descnoed to public sale at the 

door of the Craven County Courthouse, where and when Craven County became the last and 

highest bidder(s) for said land at the public sale for the sum ofS3,QS7.6S; and 

WHEREAS, on the 4111 day of February, 2016, Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, filed a 

Report of Sale indicating that Craven County was the last and highest bidder for said property in the 

amount of$3,057.()5; and, 

WHEREAS, more than 1 0 days elapsed since the original report of sale or most recent upset 

bid was filed; and 

-1 c. \t\"v-h rt:·:= 
epared By: , 

Sumrell, Sugg, Cannichael, Hickf & Hart. P.A. 
416 Pollock Street 

New Bem, NC 28560 

Book: 3417 Page: 106 Seq: 1 



Page2of4 

11111111111111111 
IntlRI IO: 0000025319&0 Type: CAP 

PaA• 2 of 4 

BK3417 Po107 

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, the assistant Craven County Clerk of Superior Court 

entered an Order of Confinnation directing Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, to execute a deed in 

fee simple to Craven County; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the said Aaron D. .Arnette, 

Commissioner, as aforesaid, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey to Craven County all of 

that certain tract or parcel of land lying, situate and being in Nt.li'Ilbet' One (1) Township, Qaven County, 

North Carolina, and more particularly desaibed as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point as follows: Proceed along the centerline of 
SR 1450 (Nelson Road) from itt intersection lVith the centerline of Old 
Nelson Road, North 88 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West 286.25 
feet to a point in the centerline of SR 1450; thence turn and proceed, 
South 00 degrees 26 minutes 00 seconds West 221.15 feet to a point, 
said poiut being the Southwestern corner of a parcel of land 
belonging, now or formerly, to AJ1Dette Fillingame, the POINT OF 
BEGINNING, thence proceed South 00 degrees 26 miDutes 00 seconds 
West 146.24 feet to a set iron pipe; thence turn and proceed South 88 
degrees OS minutes 45 seconds East 167.40 feet to a set iron pipe; 
thence tllm and proceeds North 19 degrees 46 minutes 00 seconds 
West 157.31 feet to a point; thence turn and proceed North 88 degrees 
OS minutes 45 seconds West 113.06 feet, more or less, to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING, being a parcel of land containing 0.47 acre, more or 
less, and depicted as "LOT NO. 5" on that map entitled "SURVEY 
FOR CLAYTON L. ANDERSON A PORTION OF GEORGE 
ALLEN ANDERSON TRACT", drawn December 26, 2002, by Kirby 
R. Braxton, P.L.S.; refe"'nce being made to said map for more 
accurate description of the foregoing lot or parcel of land .herein 
conveyed. 

There is also conveyed herein a right of way for ingress, egress and 
regress to and from said property from Secondary Road 1450 (Nelson 
Road) over and upon that certain "Access Easement" as more 

2 

Book: 3417 Page: 106 Seq: 2 



Page 3 of4 

llllillllllllllllllll 
Image IO: 000002:531982 Type: CRP 

PaRe 3 Of 4 

BK3417 pc108 

accurately depicted on the hereinabove referenced map. 

The property is commonly referred to by its tax parcel identification 
number which is 1-054-8002. 

Further reference is hereby made to that deed dated February 5, 
2003, from Clayton L. Anderson and wife, Eleanor Jnez Anderson to 
Ruby H. Lowe and Sandy Elizabeth Lowe recorded in Book 2001; 
Page 285 of the Craven County Registry, for a more complete and 
accurate description. 

This parcel is not the primary residence of the grantor. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid tracts or parcels of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to Craven County, the said Grantee, in fee simple forever, in as 

full and ample manner as said Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, as aforesaid, is authorized and 

empowered to convey same. 

Regarding ParcellD 1-054-8002 the title conveyed by this Commissioner's Deed is held 

pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 105-376, with Craven County having $3,057.65 in taxes, interest, 

penalties, fees and costs associated wi(h this matter, all of which constitute a first and prior lien as of 

the date of the sale. Upon subsequent sale of this parcel, the proceeds will be distributed to Craven 

County pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § I 05-376. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Aaron D Arnette, Conunissioner, hath hereunto set his 

hand and seal the day and year first above written. 

3 

Book: 3417 Page: 106 Seq: 3 



P~ge 4 of4 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRA YEN 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIUIIIII~I 
Ima~e IO: 000002531$1912 Typt: CAP 

Page 4 of 4 

BK3417 Po1Q9 

-- .. 

I, Debbie H. Southerland, a Notary Public of Surry County, North CaroJina, do hereby 
certify that Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, personally appeared before me this day and 
acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial stamp or seal, this [ 'i!f' day of :1~ 2016. 

My Commission Expires: 2/11/17 

\\SERVER04\Issdocs\00000033\00067086.000.DOC'X 

4 

Book: 3417 Page: 106 Seq: 4 



33.60 

~ 
0 

-4 
~ 
(fJ 

·~ 

'-4 
C'JJ 

209.76 

230 

Craven GIS 

20. 

\ I 

t-o. 
~ 
N 

l I ..... .,.. 
~ 

""" C\1 

\ r 

~ 
M 
I 

"\Q'i-~'2 

'\6fl.'2.?. 

I 114.86 

N 
LO 

I 
<:D -.:t,' ., 

~ ..... 
~ 

I 
N ,..... 
N 
M 

}-113.06 
II 

'It 
N 
rd 
'It ..... 

~ 
0 
• I ll) 

~ N 
<ri 
0 .,.. 

(5) 

(6) 

208.04 

Craven Courtly dots NOT wartant tht information shown on 1his map and. should be used ONLY for tax assusmtnl purpose•. 

--0') .,.. -

81.09 

I 

\ 
?; 
~ ~ 

\ 
~ 1 (350) 

\ v --< \ ..,....,.~ \ 

~ .,.\ 
,., I \'l'iJ\ V \ 

t; \ \ \ 
'cP I ~ \ \ \ I 

,,\ \. t.\ 
I ~ 

\~ \ 
\ '16'1-~~ '$y \ . ., \ t. \ 

\ 

0\ 

.. \ ~ \ 
\'3 / 1" 

'. ~/ tJ,"· 
\ ~-;'!> "" ' -ov· -..... \ /l\:. ~ .......... 

\ .. '~-"<;; "" 

. \;"' ~ 'V~//\ "" 

(180) 

v. 1. \ ...... ':'~ .:0,;>4' 

// \ / 

\ '2.~ 

---~ 
.1 inch=82feet t 



RESOLUTION 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County has received an offer to purchase a parcel of property 
owned by it identified as Tax Parcel Number 2-061-079, and more particularly described in Deed 
Book 2104 at Page 726 in the Craven County Registry (hereinafter the "Real Property''), a copy 
of said offer is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County's interest in the 
property pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

1. That the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the initiation of the upset bid 
process for the Real Property by advertising notice of the offer to purchase in accordance with 
the provisions ofNorth Carolina General Statue §160A-269. 

2. That the County Manager, Clerk and/or Attorney are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution. 

ADOPTED TillS 18TH DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

GEORGE LINER, Chairman 

9\\\SERVER04\LSSOOCS\00000034\00068646.000.DOCX 



NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 
OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT 

FAIRFIELD HARBOUR PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., as Buyer; herel)y offers to purchase and CRAVEN 
COUNTY, as Seller, upon acceptance of said offer, agrees to seH aitd convey, a11 of that plot, piece or parcel of land described below 
(hereafter referred to as the t~Property"), upon the following terms and conditions: · 

1. REAL PliOPERTY: Located in Township 2, Craven County, North Carolina, being known as and more particularly described as: 
Street Address: 109 Great Inagtta Court, New Bern, NC 28580 
Tax Parcel ID No.; 2-061-079 
Being all· of that property m9.te particularly described ih Deed Book 2104, Page 726 in the Craven County Registry. 
2. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price is $25.00 and shall be paid as follows: 
(a) $0.00 EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT with this offer by · D cash 0 bank check (J certified check Cl other; N/A to be held by 

Seller untii the sale is closed, at which time it will be credited t-o B:uyer, or until this contract is otherwise properly terntinated. In 
the event this offer is not accepted~ then all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer. In the event of breach of this contract by 
SeHer; aU earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer upon Buyer's request. In the event of breach of this contract by Buyer, then 
all earnest monies shall be forfeited to Seller upon SeHer's request, but such forfeiture shall not affect any other remedies 
available to Seller for such breach. 

(b) $25.00 BALANCE of the purchase price in cash or readily avai1a;ble fiuids at Closing. 
3. CONDITIONS: 
(a} This contract is not subject to Buyer obtaining tlmincing. 
(b) The Property must be in substantially the same or better condition at Closing as on the date oftbis offer, reasonable wear and tear 

excepted. 
(c) The Property is being sold subject to all liens and en(}unibrances of ~ecord, if any. 
(d) Other than as provided herein, the PrQperty is bdng conveyed "as ]s". 
(e) This contract is subject to the provisions ofG.S. §160A-269. Buyer acknowledges that this contract is subject to certain notice 

provisions and the rights in others to submit upset bids in accbrdance therewith. 
(f) Title shall be delivered at Closing by QU1TCLAIM DEED 
4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: Seller makes no watrtmcy or representation as to any p~hding or confirmed governmental special 
assessments for sidewa1k~·paving, water; sewer, or other improvements on 6r adjoining the Property, or pending or conf'mned owners' 
association special assessments. ·Buyer shall take title subject to all pending assessments, jf any. 
S. PAYMENT OF TAXES: Any Ad valorem taxes to which the Property is subject shall be paid in their entirety by Buyer. 
6. EXPENSES: Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to any title search, title insurance, record~g of the deed, its legal 
fees, and for prepar(ltion and recording of all instruments required to secure the balance of the purchase price unpaid at Closing. Seller 
shall pay for preparation of a deed and ail other documents necessary to perforin Seller's obligations under this agreement, and for any 
excise tax (:revenue stamps) required by law. 
7. EVIDENCE OF TITLE: Not Applicable. 
~. CLOSING: Closing shall be defmed as the date and tiine of recording of the d~ed. AU parties agree to execute any and all 
documents and papers necessary in connection with Closing and transfer oftit1e on or before thirty {30) days after final approval is 
given by the Craven County Board of Commissioners· pursuant to G.S. §160A-269. 
The deed is to be made to~ FAIRFIELD HARBOUR PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, IN:C., orassign(s). 
CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION. 
9. POSSESSION: Unless oth¢rwise provided herein, possession shall be delivered at Closing. 
iO. PROPERTY INSPECTION, APPRAISAL, INVESTIGATION: 
(a) This contract is nqt subject to inspection, appraisal or investigation, as, the Property is be.ing· bought "as iS'\ Seller makes no 
representation as to water, sewer, conditions, title~ access~ or fitness for any intended use. 
(b) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION. 
11. RIGHT OF ENTRY, RESTORATION AND INDEMNITY: Buyer and Buyer's {lgents and contractors shalJ not have the right to 
enter upon the Property for any purpose without advance written pennission of the Seller. If such permission is given, Buyer will 
indemnifY cmd hold Seller hannless from all Joss, damage, claims, suits or costs, which shall arise out of any contrac~ agreement, or injury 
to any person or property as a result of any activities of Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors relating to the Property. This indemnity 
shall survive this contract and any termination hereof. 
12. OTHER PROVISIONS A.ND CONDITIONS! (ITEMIZE ALL ADDENDA to THIS CONTRACT AND ATTACH 
HERETO.): None. 

Buyer rnitials A c .S~ler lnitials -~
Page J of2 



13. RISK QF LOSS; The risk of loss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon Seller. 
14. ASSIGNMENTS: This contract may not be assigned without the written consent or all parties, bo.t iftl$signe:d by agreement; then 
thi~ CQritract shall be binding on the assi~ee and the assignee's heir!;, successors or assigns (as the case may b¢). 
15. PARTIES: This contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, Le., Buyer and SeHer a11d their heirs, 
successorS and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the plural and the masculine includes the feminf11e and neuter 
gemlefs, as appr(?priate. 
16. $URVlVAL: lf any provision herein contained· which by its nature and effect is required to be obserVed; kept or performed after 
the Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remain binding upon and for the benefit of the parties hereto until fully observed, kept or 
performed. 
17. ENTIRE AGRE-EMENT: This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no representations, inducements 
or other provisions other than those expressed herein. Al1 changes, additions or deletions hereto must be in writing arid signed by all 
parties. 
18. NOTICE AND EXECUTION: Any notke or communication to be given. to a party herein may be given to the party or to such 
party's agent. This offer sl@ll become a binding contract (the '~Effective Date'') when signed by both Buyer and Seller and such 
signing is communicated to the Qffeiing party. This contract is executed under seal in signed multiple originals, all of which together 
constitute one· and the same instrument, with a signed original being retained by each party,· and the parties . adopt the word "SEAL" 
beside their signatures below. · 

BUYER: SELLER 

FAIRFIELD HARBOUR PROPERTY OWNERS' CRAVEN COUNTY 
ASSOCIATION, INC. 

By: ,__~-----~-_.._.__(SEAL) 

Its: Its: 

Date:. Date; 

Buyer Initials /1cs ~Seller Initials~-

9\\\SERVER04\issdocs\00000034\00068592.000.DOCX 
Pa&e 2 of2 



Craven County Geographic Information System 
Craven County does NOT w.arran~ the information shown on this page and. should be used ONLY for tax assessment purposes. 

This report was created by Craven County GIS reporting services on 4/12i2016 9~02:48 AM 

ParceiiD: 

Owner: 

Mailing Address : 

Property Address : 

Description : 

Lot Description : 

2-061 -079 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

406 CRAVEN ST NEW BERN NC 28560 

109 GREAT INAGUA CT 

79 TOBAGO SEC 7 P1 

Assessed Acreage : 0.270 

2104"0724 

13-45-

Calculated Acreage : 0.270 

Deed Reference :. 

Recorded Survey : 

Recorded Date : 10 16 2003 

Estate Number : 

Land Value : $1 ,450 Tax Exempt: Yes 

Improvement Value : $0 #of Improvements : 0 

Total Value.: $1,450 

City Name: Fire tax District : TRJ-COMMUNITY 

Draina$J_e District : Special District : 

Land use: 

SALE DATE 

10/16/2003 

8/12/1986 

VACANT-RESIDENTIAL TRACT 

Sellers Name 

Recent Sales Information 

Buyers Name 

WEDDING, Wlt,.LIAM L & CRAVEN COUNTY 
MARGARETE 

FAIRFIELD HARBOUR WgDDING, WILLIAM L & 
INC MARGARET E 

List of Improvements to SUe 

No improvemenfs listed for this parcel 

Sale Type 

STRAIGHT 
TRANSFER 

LAND SALE 

Sale Pri~~ 

$2,0'00 

$16,500 





.. ~. 
Page 1 of1 

STATE OF NORTH C~ROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

I 

! 
l 
I 
i 
I 

Craven NC • Docunent Stalf' 
f!ecb· lhoFSOth Re~tst.er' of Deed~ 

nate 1011612003 Ti~~e 10:24t27 ·i of 1 Fgs 
No: '200:3-00078'150 > 

Book 2104 Pa~ 724 
F~e ~t : 
Ekdse h:n 

14.00 
.14.00 

~ Revenue Stamps: $4~00 
COMMISS NER'S DEED 

?tN If .:2-o E. - 0~ h 
' I 

This deed, made this .3( day of September, 2003, by! MARK D. BARDJLL, Commissioner, to 
County of Craven of Craven County, North carot~na. ! 

WITNESSETH! ! 
i : 

That whereas the said MARK D. BARD ILL Was appointed tommissioncr under an order of t1w> Plstrlcl 
Co. urt, in the tax forecJosure proceeding entipe<t Cta,ven Cou .. nty ,. us Williani L. W. Cddi.ng. et al, f~~ N~. 
03-CVD-S32; and said MARK D. BARDILL wasi di.rected by s d Order as Comm~ione.r to sell the- land 
hereinafter described at public sale after due adVef1isement a.Ccord ng to law; and 

Whereas~ thesa)d MARK D. BARDILL, C~inO}issioner, ~J on the Sth day of September, 2003.offe, 
the laQd h'ereinafte.r describOO at a public sale at t!Je Craven Co . ty Courthouse door, in New Bern, North 
Carolina., and then an.dth. ere.·the .said County.of Ctaven became e last and 'highest bidder for said .land fi.or. 
the sum of $1,579~-56; and 119 upset or increased bfd having been ade within th.e time allowed by law, ~. 
said sale having been confirmed by said Court, an4 said MAR.J{·tp. BARDILL? Commissioner. having been 
ordered to ex¢cute a deed to said purchaser upon J>ilYment of the ~iircll~ m9ney; 

. . . ; . I . 
Now, therefore, for and in consideration .ofjthe premi$eii abd the .sum of $1,579.5(), receipt of whiCh 

is hereby acl<no.wle4ged, ·tb~ said MARK D. BARDil.-L •. Commis.siofier, does by these presents, hereby bargain, 
sell, grant, and convey ·ro t}le ~id County of Craveq. and their su~rs, heirs and assigns that certain parcel 
or tract of land, situated in Nu1pber Two Township~.·craven County~ North Carolina, and described as follows: 

Bein .. g. all o.f Lot No .. 79, .as. shown and des~nated on tbatf. ~n plat ·of .Fm..· · .. teld. Harbour, Tob~, 
Sect1on 7, Part l, recorded m MaP Book/PI~ cab. 13, Pa /Shde(s) 45, tn the ()ffiee of the ReglSter 
of Deeds of Craven County~ ! · 
The for~going conveyance ]s made subject tQ th0$e certa~'n venant$, restricUons, easements. charges, 
liens,. conditions and provisions contained inithose certain d uments recorded in Book 797, Page 883, 
and Book 858. Page 9, in the office of the Register of s of Craven County. 

. . ~ . I 

. i 

T(l have and to hold the aforesaid tract of Jan4, t9 the said C 'unty of Craven~ and their successors. heirs 
and assigns forever. in as full and ample manner a$ said MA . . BARPlLL. Commissioner u aforesaid, 
is authorized and empowered to convey the same, j · 

NORTH CAROUNA 
CRAVEN COUNTY 

I. YY\\J" Z.l f<. 'Rb\)$t; of said 
Commissioner. Grantor, personally ·aPPeared 
foregoing deed. · 

Witness my hand and official seat 

certify tha.t MARK D. BARDii.L, 
and acknowledged tl!e ex~titjon· of tbe 


	Agenda20160418
	Attachment #1.B
	Attachment #1.C
	Attachment #1.D
	Attachment #4
	Attachment #5
	Attachment #6.A
	Attachment #6.B
	Attachment #6.C
	Attachment #7
	Attachment #8
	Attachment #9.A
	Attachment #9.B
	Attachment #11.A
	Attachment #11.B
	Attachment #11.C



